

William

through real 31

Gambrell, 6 letters 1849

Health → Mission from, 220 miles of St Josephs 5/25/49
 - despite cholera, on - progress remarkably well - 18 to 20 mph -
 board given, fished out - chol seem to abated
 to m. - Gambrell - Randolph CT mo Roenoke

→ From Bishop O'Brien from 7/11/49 Den mother - take care of
 mail from Calif - fine health & spirits - left Capt Miller on his
 color and his Messable Co. any longer - on 6/28 made prep to
 behead - we 1 m & gray by 1255 - he will follow the we 1 m
 traveled the plains - we v 5 yoke of 1st rate oxen, a lot of straw
 + good hns, saddle & bridle open 6 mos provs - abundant hay -
 we 1 m now ahead of the other co. of Randolph - go 20 mph, which is
5 m over the org - open one well as near

!! We intend to go to St. as we had the v. of road & find of that place
 ch shorter than distance 200 miles

Health → Appally strong re death str (in our rear) ch we had of - go on who help
 So of 57 yoke of pure mules - situa of those dead in is truly
 frighting - supposed to be 4000 yoke dead in - Since we can not take
 all grass has been abundant [SP & we gave] - with a yoke

Randolph Camp. April 4, 1850 - Den mother

X

W. Smith Gambrell

to mother Little Blue 5/19/50

we 1 50 m of Fk, l a hearty - open in better order than when we left
 honor of keep of all Buck, give us 150 m of us
 → now 12-15 mph - when given better v do 15-20
 - got thru by to haul com - G's flack up - no other a road
 so far this yr - would be much longer - my tiny back -
 Some of small eat fast, 1 cow or 1 horse - some way they
 provs in their beeps - huss as guy out
 We all look Ragn - Rob malcom came to his death 14th &
 shooting himself in head actual - letter sent by one of our own thousands

John R + Gambrell

to father, at the LB 50 m of Fk 5/19/50

suprat

tp called

London

- 7/2 SP City Road forks here, one goes to FH + is called to London at also the Northern str. the other of SLC - former to Blue of water + oil
 - 7/3 Snowball pits - to PS - (SP 50 + mile)
 - 7/4 road + strag damage - a few discharges [L3]
 - 7/6 part reconnection between McKinney + Gilman
 - 7/7 GR 5 farms tree SOC
 - 7/8 300 troops of Camp Floyd + Bridgman
 - 7/9 Camp HF - free bridge - tps + Is - Blue F.
- end of the destroyed here - also, seen to bridge a console of 30 yrs back to save life of coal

Mayas + R

- 7/10 BF, 8 m Gilman B. Ranch of Mayas + Russell Co. 200 yrs conserved the a strag etc
- 7/11 Cpl. W of Bridgman, near place of post - streams all bridged, a Fisherman's pond - near strag - some good log hrs - some canvas 400 troops - 6 WW

FVB

SLC

- 7/15 frigate - Echo Canyon 7/18 SLC - dump 15000 mostly foreigner
- 7/22 Ogden, tree only SOC
- 7/23 BR settlement - mated 1, 23 7/25 Blue sp
- 7/29 70 FH - SL strag - City of Rox 7/30 Game C. mt
- 8/1 1000 SV 8/2 Dupont Is
- 8/3 175 Soldier Camp here of former of Es - repr of 6 mated
- 8/9 strag Ch + Sh mail st

n. n. n.

Don't fear of + dec
not electric but
dual

- 8/11 near 35 8/15 near Lesser meadows when Henry Lake Road commences, 80 miles also since 1/2 hrs 88 the st
 - 8/22 meadow 8/22 a desert
 - 8/25 a Shale tree + Rayton 8/27 road forks, one falls to rv, the other - a desert of 26 miles. to RR is 32 miles to same desert.
 - 8/29 mail station 8/30 Chumtown, north Good Gulch
 - 8/31 CV - CC 9/14 Gmose 9/2 up Cannon
 - hoped, small + smith shop at mail - first timber since U.S.
 - Hope v - 9/13 same - Lake v 9/4 SF am R
 - 9/6 last entry - by trees - other no settlement
 - 9/8 [return to book] to Placerville
- Mo R to - 1881 n

5/27 **FR** Edge courts of a public square where they do their drilling 13 pieces of Cannon are at the outer edge of square. It is nicely set out - rising up - by bar + stable + other narrow alleys - at 30 bluff - all, of in 1/2 side. 160 soldiers - are there - just ahead

5/28 **FR** Canal Plym Creek

5/31 **FR** B, a helper went - I caught a yr wolf - Canal Springs

FR 6/1 **FR** Freemont Sp - 2 tps - 20 wigwags Ophelia Bluffs

They need their names of man who was of goods. He got a terrible storm + wild house. (?)

6/2 **FR** when they up course of FS - they run over miles

6/4 **FR** Canal SFP 4 miles below to M crossing, only a la deep - Canal out not 1/2 as bad as report - I did start - one place 1/2 hour + get out

FR 6/6 **FR** Canal to NF, Canal just above alt - 2 tps here + I v

FR 6/9 **FR** Stage sta of CR - near CARR, 6 miles of road - 4 offshots

FR 6/10 **FR** Visit CR 3 hrs very it + playing Yukon on it 200 + 200
Mans. all weary and. Left me here + at CARR

FR 6/14 **FR** SOS read name of host to hunting who was murdered there of Is

FR 6/15 **FR** Paul, 3 tps, Canal HC, 80' Siv I camps

FR 6/17 **FR** Canal LR. in a bridge 1 mi below L - \$2.50 even team
Govt house / my am NP - 20 cattle hrs

FR 6/15 **FR** By Canal, Little Canal 6/16 Rocks Below Red -
Ketchikan or Precious Peas

FR 6/20 **FR** Over C - by river + I v

FR 6/21 **FR** Plate Bridge (passal) (over?) - log loss of traps
Mexican property up Over C

FR 6/23 **FR** And. or Ferry of NP, 5 m above the bridge, 30 team ahead of us
at the ferry - saw man drawing, by doctinal

FR 6/23 **FR** Canal P - 131 ab - L - another ferry 31 miles below + bridge in
6 miles below \$2. + 50 - another bridge use 141 miles ab L

6/24 **FR** Lv P, WS

6/25 **FR** tp + tree bridge of IR, over parkland

FR 6/27 **FR** far IR - gravelly top - need its name of - man eating his hand on
to top just + some yrs ago - a stately alder of all others (?) - OS
Littleman - Range of rms

[Excellent details of route, as they saw]

to m to Mouth of Echo Can. (Kamp)
 11/15 - called to go rest of way to see & notes, ~~to~~ 90 miles (Smith did)
 "15 Parley Pass up the Snow - 25 m to city
 to see - Barber shop etc 2 1/2 - hotel filled - up mine came
 of the winter - intend to stay here 1 - spell
 [des down in sec - "Extract of m 1"]

Letter of Old Man - many g-father - land present

John Wesley Powell 1859 1844-1912

W/ come to him John Powell, d. 1848 US Army & son William D. Powell.
 Relationship Jw to others unclear - Jw Powell of Colorado
 Original m - diary unpagel + hand-written copy of author [by cho., is] w/ mileage taken

54 pps

D - w/ Jw Powell while crossing Pks of Manago, Iowa to Platteville, Co
 w/ ox-teams - 1859. w/ in John Gibson Co. - small train, 13 pines, 1/2
 sec 34 all well and, no women. It's often by family tree of loose cattle
 something to stampede in their hobby.

start

4/18 lv to Glouster - Pacific City

nt

5/19 Arrived m/r at Platteville, an Stan ferry, 'destined to - by city'

5/24 PP Ewin return homeward - 43 hours

PP

5/12 went over 100 teams retg, & prob saw only 1/2 of them as
 there is 2 roads here, Salt Creek, 25 yds of rock bottom

fun

5/16 volun - stop during - 3 boys gone of Co

nt

5/17 10 m E of Green - more PP's [97 miles of Platteville]

5/18 and P bottom today - Arrived Elk Cr, little poke bridge

PV
I

back to Es

5/19 Arrived Silver Creek, 8 m W Elk C - PV one of messor - to rest ?

5/20 15 mi - in camp of old PV, destroyed of Sue - 1850 - 10 acres



[137 for Platteville] - Co of chief of 60 pines, moss in

just above of w/ in the bluffs in their way being place - Sue Ex had se-
 hemul some of them, there they lie to bleach

AP

5/22 retg PP for gone in of Co

FK
AC

5/26 in camp just below FK - 3 oak has been 8 miles below K - one
 to used of a salmon, they is likely to produce & plenty come - the
 other has been - fine pine garden inland of oak piece

Jose E. Ferris: Huan Guan Ferris y Dellen y Cely
CHSQ XXVI (4) (Oct 47) 289-307

See
F64

1832 finds My T. Dellen - up y sth sth to tradain
Landy, opp kitchen - outside of Fountain Green (Harcocca St)
(MS at Navoo, Harococca St)

at Mex College - 1850 find David Colton, by 3 h
Fung of Fine Modem - to stg, where he bought ~~the~~ Bisen +
Shalope - Note to CBS - 4/15/50 start

Did not attend things to any of slown conovs -
to also - some Phacelipa Super - by ind trip in the
about real time y to days - Yraker

letter 7/10/50 of PV in Hayton, Calif

- I and you - 2 weeks to days of more - had of luck
+ got all or less than - just over 201 to 2 & 190. .. We
+ put things thru endings some in left to state + got here
unusually early of ov Es

to 294

Four Factors are not made - only having - but any
man who can see had 6 ov. 26-12 fD

X

South Pass Jun 28

3 p.m.

v. thick grass - ~~the~~ an origin plants of
 snow - snowballing - now down to same
 boys are all very close together - tea manna
 It would do you y to see me sit
 look oppo to write by Calif
 let v. best ? Nelson thin of the state here since
 15 days & he got to to disjoin about 5/10 [let. y. ?]
 tonight are cool enough to sleep under a heavy
 blanket

>

Sac City 10/26

2 p.m.

I am yet started up to living - v. quiet morning -
 gone to team.

O'Leary Jun 28 - X or Royal & Ready

Coleria here

[late letter as to manna] manna - / Royal CT

Jefferson Bridgell letter, photocopy of original with
written to copy - Paris, Ind. - "Check called
Little Engine in late Judge. Eugene & Bridgell of
Colum CT. - couple of Mrs. Eva Broadbent & her husband
[letter 10/62 of Eugene B. Butler & Berkeley]

> For Chile May 28, 1950. - Now a sight of the port -
so far no bad luck. so all of health - some of
stock has improved - we & party own 400 eggs - met
some trapping, said we were going to present them -
as to horse team I do not find the matter. - we a try
as put on some of them as the rest & some of them we a
heavy light - (refers to middle-aged cow)
William & Robert to of catch 3 day ahead -
I write to you of train time in Car on last - I
request you to let us in FL Ammie
[3rd day past missing]

3 pr

> Platt's Ferry June 20 - 500 m of the state - we
have only half of one day some we left to limit -
road the very rough & had some we left FL -
over coast & part of wearing out cattle put
a few fine lot of boat. as to ferry - can
cross one 500 up a day - will clear some 200,000
dollar - 2-3 months 15 py 12 head cattle
at. hrs - try make about \$250 per hour. -
some draft saving the loss - we do not what
I saw such a much - make - I ferry a large
house & some the catch
all the middle we need as present in some way
to eat

2 pr

a letter [copy] for some strickland in the harbor west -
 & left it of the [?] to [?], 3 or 4 of the boys seemed to watch
 & they saw the [?] & take it away. I expect they had it
 July [?] of [?]

talked up before I go on [?] [?] [?]
 [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] (1923) 3-5
 Chas. Kelly, [?] [?] (1936) 83-84

[?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] (SF 1880) 475
 *While on the road thru the Canyon at [?] of [?], who had the stock
 except one year with [?] [?] [?] - all men, also [?] [?]
 & her mother, had a part of the [?] of [?] to [?] [?] [?]
 a [?] [?], any there 10/20/75

[?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] 13 BR.
 in Yuba Co., we put [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?]
 [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?]
 at [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?]
 in [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?]
 X

131-133

'Skeleton of James Oregon'
 [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?]
 4/15 [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?]
 there are more [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?]
 [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?]
 to [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?]

Now FH [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?]
 [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?]
 [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?]
 to [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?]

In the [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?]
 as [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?] [?]
 the lumber was to build a schooner on the [?] of [?] [?]
 River, [?] 50 miles [?] [?]

"The Oregon Memorial", CHSR XIX, 2 (June, 1940) 113-143
June & Eliza Marshall G - Ca pioneer of 1845, left his
collected covers from 1845-50

114-117

"Mrs. Gregory's Memory" - G. Engel 1824 - 1839 NY to RI
at 19 met Jane Gregory - vol 43 - to Rock Island Ct. Ill.
fall '44 - fever & ague - broke down

Spr. 45 for Oregon - by ship - estimated 6 months
3 yoke cattle, 1 bag of 6 persons + 1 pack of up at Burlington, Pa.
Nothing of especial interest while we were at fort Hall
where we found a stock of provisions low & not good. - little was
there we left a party of 40 up a man named Brinton [Eliza]

I did carry a way & hauled down the to the falls - had to
cut ways down & make a case of it & throw away one of a yoke &
they began to look very dead, just there

Our own party, Es of being looking of recruits as we got
there so much was about 40 up in all

135

[With Henry Marshall, "Rems of a Pioneer" - the Pioneer
San Jose 8/10/78 states he left I of Or up Capt. Welch
129 men, & provisions 500 - (Dr. Presley, Welch, who was capt of the
platoon of Stephen H L mean, & of Ch Joel Palmer was a member -
see Palmer - Ben Benjamin IV 576-81 dated 1845 over to
Calif at 5 gate. Swamy-Todd (or Swyde - Blackburn) ; a co. of
15 men incl. Wm. L. Sublette, & Co. Gregory - who Co. ; Front
exploring expedition ; & a party incl. Laup & W. Hastings

He says in Oregon to the Gregory - Old July
but Gregory says he fell in by Jacob & Joseph & Judge Blackburn
who are trying to pack horses - Gen. McDougall got word Ft
& also Knight, Baump states that these men came up
Swamy-Todd party where Capt. Gregory - then - I.F.H -

William F. Swamy include the - his party of 12
but does not mention Gregory - to Marshall

They had an old man of the name of Governor of
Pilar - Is it Col - many - an account of the
bo...

42	63	Wells, George J., diary	1849	microfilm of original ms from University of Michigan; copy
* 43	?	Hampton, William H., diary	1852	Diary (Sac, 1958) pp ?
44	?	Boquist, Laura B., recollects	1862	Crossing to Plains (?, 1930) pp
46		Ellis, Hiram +, diary	1865	Across to West & Good Wagon 1-46
* 47		Ellis, James address ✓	1865	(Honolulu, 1961) 47-72
		Ruise, Mary, ✓	1864	Journal (Santa Ana, 1956)
51		Dean, Thaddeus, letter	1852	Letter 1 (Tampa, 1979) 26 pp
* 52		George Hart, recollects	1864	Crossing to Plains (Sac, 1957) 23 pp
48		Hindman, David R., recollects ?	1849	The Way to my Good Wagon (Stg 1908) 1-67
53		Murrayweather, F.	1856	England & America
* 53		Parkul, William	1850	Early E. to C. (Ology 1928) 1-10
55		Horton / Todd	1852	On to Oregon (Wesley 1947) 47 pp
57		Wells with Stubbs ^{orig 182?}	1849	→ His J (Hayel 1960) 37 pp
* 60		David Teeter Lippo	1864	ditto
62		D. Jayson	1849	m.s.
63		Carly, Ohio Co.	1849	[write for info]
64	?	Powell, Wm Kahi, paper	1851	"Over Covered Wagon" [short] typewritten
64		Furlong, Wm Mang, paper	1843	"When I Crossed to Plains" typewritten
64		Ferguson, Henry O, recollects	1849	typewritten [See # 70 !!]
65	?	Dam, Francis Leon Dam	1865	✓
66		Collins, Martha A., recollects	1852	map. clippings
66		Smith, Eliz. Dorothea Robinson	1849 1850	typewritten
67		Budgetal. Jefferson, letters	1850	photocopy of original [incomplete]
		Watts, John William, di.	1850	

Stubbs, William North

See Wm Padon Jr ?
 47 " W. B. Taylor 1844
 47 " Padon's Collection of W.A. J + W. Stricker, Princeton U. Chronicle (X(4)) Jan 1948

1	Trubody, Wm Alpaugh, recollect	1847	CHQ XVI (1921) 122-143
2 R	Knowlton, Eleanor F., ms recol	1857	? ? ms. pp
* 3	Bloom, Henry Stanley, diary	1850	X Photostat of tt, ^{65 pp} 1-24
* 5	Ann. (McGinnis), diary	1852	? Copy of tt pp
* 6	Bachelder, Oramus, diary	1849	typed copy 74 pp
* 7	Cagwin, Haniel Aubrey, diary	1850	original ms., + tt (53 + 28)
9	Watts, Benjamin M., diary	1849	? Xerox copy of orig ms, pp.
11	Barley, Wm Carey, recollect / diary	1853	? tt of original, pp.
11	Campbell, d David, recollect / ^{man} man	1846	? tt, pp.
13	Brown, Orlando, diary	1852	original ms., 139 pp
15	Burroughs, J. N., recollects	1856	typed copy, 61 pp
16	Call, Asa Cyrus, recollects / diary	1850	bound typescript, 48 pp. (1-12)
17	Call, James, letter	1850	? typed copy, pp
* 18	Cosad, David, diary	1849	original ms., 73 pp.
18	Cowden, J S, diary ^{BL photo}	1853	bound photocopy of orig ms: 44 ^{double} pp
20	Huxon, Joseph Morris, diary	1849	tt of original ms d., 44 pp.
* 22	Hill, John B., diary	1850	tt of original ms d., 21 pp 20
23	Griswood, Harriet Booth, diary	1859	BL photo of tt
24	Egbert, Eliza M. Kelley, diary	1852	BL photo of tt
26	Cranston, Susan Maria, diary	1851	? tt, pp
* 27	Estlin, Thomas, diary	1849	photocopy of orig ms, 195 pp
* 28	Mann, Henry Rice, diary ^{BL photo}	1849	typed copy of Xerox print, 25 pp
* 30	Malcom, Eliza Mary Eliza Warner, ^{diary or} man ^{man}	1864	Original ms; pp 25
30	McBride, J C, diary? or recollect	1850	? tt of original, pp (10?)
30	Wilson, Robin Milton, diary	1850	tt of original, 27 pp (57)
32	White, Stephen, recollects	1850 (?)	orig ms + tt (32 + 24)
33 ?	Milner, Joseph ^{original} (Southern nt?)	1849 (?)	? Photo of tt, 49 pp
33	Lockie, Dr. Dean J., diary	1849	? (tt) of original, 12 pp
* 35	Laman, E. G., letter	1850	orig ms
* 35	Hall, O J, letter ?	1849	? tt of orig, pp. (20 lines)
36	Lewis, Edward M., diary	1865	orig ms of 24 pp
37	Powell, John Wesley, diary	1859	BL photo of tt
40-	William Gaverell, letter	1849	} microfilm, of University of Virginia Library
41	Smith W. Gaverell, ✓	1850	
	R + ✓	1850	
	A B Clement ✓	1849	
	C F Clement ✓	1850	
	C B ✓	1850	
	Chad ✓	1849	

SP
X?

7/13 Salt Lake C

7/14 ✓

7/15 I think - I shoot Melville Hally

7/16 ✓ - also by
- Dr.

7/17 Mell is better & better

7/18 more air - bed - a canopy

7/19 men should throw out all to return of Mell

7/20 the origin of cotton plants

7/21 Q ✓ to flux - Mell?

7/22 Mell is better - use of no pens

7/23 - I give up of 7 for logs, liquor
Camps, & drive to Collier Rv

8/9 return Collier, near J - Mell able to make
a house - walls Collier note

Catholics to Gen of White mounds

8/10

8/21

8/12 value 20 to 30 lbs - some Bot Camp

8/13 for Day out

8/14 finally a table - people a table Book, 6 in / the Dull
\$10 pp. \$50 pp.

8/15 can Discontinue now pay 05. - then who can
do - case in demand

8/16

8/17 8 hrs to. up - Barber Book

8/18

8/19

8/20 Laurel hill. steep & dry

8/21

8/22

8/23 Foster's farm, of manna - Mell is entitled

to fair - I also work straight after now by - a

house of so long when I get up to get an to floor.

Q in late - and Sadies who had not in - land,

& the time - [last acts] to OC, to Pottel

when I now seen

6/17 DB also - abate of names

(G) Elizabeth Campbell. 23 - 2 girls

6/18 Names on my rocks

6/18 English who eat apples - blackbird song - not sheep

6/19 Ice Sp

6/20 Padon of lalip, mule seal fat 1 (woman)

Wickon Co, Straley C

6/21 PS - (SP) body of onets to take create song

Body of table land reading, 15 m wide the

pleasant place Q v yet seen

6/22 C LS - 1 S to SP. W m, 5 PS 3 -

6/23

6/24 PS - 2 town SCO

6/25 BR - 3 - 4 good friends - ab 30 -

40 white men of Is, small group

6/10. a by to GR, \$1. A horse - camp -

Selma front browser ab to union by Green River

6/26 road of GR to SL

6/27

6/28 Hair Fur

6/29

6/30

7/1 to the Fur BR, Iv Aubry, gene

7/2 DR

7/3 SS - trade return, white of animal v Mexican

at HF a chem to seal letters to HF a m v one

of white resident names of Es

7/4

7/5 Crest - I ~~say~~ dry, pulverize of soap

C II m E FH

7/5. FH, passed Fur to Horn, on for 5 m

ab FH, when seal stated - legs 60 seal

US yes - why gene? not say of Es to the

7/7 Its surprise

7/8 Great Am Falls

7/9 Cassin's - letter of paper of origin

7/10 I therein

7/11

7/12 near I say, the worse roads we v

cleans - to soil: they are whiter too than any that we
 v seen - old chief wants us in, travel to see a white woman
 5/31: Outlook of the pass, ch had just come to P
 (G) youngest Hawn Dec 3/6/49 (46)

6/1: Best of road equal to McDaniel - Cobble Hills
 GBR

6/2: part CHR, ss - shows later one - try to
 sketch CR (in back part of book) - rubble - in 3 or 4
 years it had hardly notice it at all

6/3: per oxen dig of dirty sand water - ss ss
 ground - Scott stand to death - to top of them, v like
 to v down them

6/4

6/5: into 6 on true Limestone - soil

6/6: Is and camp see fly

6/7: Can't a part ch in beyond all expect, above on fly -
 town in Henderson + much harder in man at the Buelly one
 brick 3 strong in - stone in a get about eight a unit -
 quite a number of fine beds - sand ss, as you find it
 It's about 5 - 600 - so sand here now, some of which
 Seem to 10 m of the part - not about to cross but
 wheel go in to NS - as if a boys could to put some
 letter into office - new road up NS came into to old one
 at 80 miles also to part - some a handle of up as far as
 the Es v left

6/8: OTS - soil - rocks pieces to color of soil

6/9: P Kenyon - water - tons notice

6/10: /

6/11: Botany - I G

6/12

6/13: (G) Clematis 1849, basal - a Conot - water
 dig up every - it looks so small

6/14: Rock Basin

6/15: Ground Ch - lv P actually, seed like - seed
 accy

6/16: IR 200 yds of N - detail - top journaling
 sep a man up to rest

- 5/8 Over to summer, frogs, plenty of Is - to PR
white sand, blows a constant wind - IG of rocks
pyramidal style, hole at side a foot across
- 5/9 Over Shell Creek, now - to plain - P water very dry
when out of ch we do by the throy - a little along, v but it
stank awhile, later in 1914 or 1915 water - for -
Currellos w/ a wegers. We r - many crowd, while
Q an journey see of A Co. to flays to Virginia, by
accident is also in ground
- 5/10 to Long Pine P - too low to cross
- 5/11 Leap - Is up to tackle us - on of to Basin
of us they attend
- 5/12 okeo cp
- 5/13 - ✓
- 5/14 try to find a low, "in a cup" situated very fast
- 5/15 Care on 1912
- 5/16 ample stone
- 5/17 road only, so not muddy - under of 200 B
tracks, loopy - 8 deal like furrows
- 5/18 frame across - G. A. uslogy, 6/12/49 - Edgcomb
- 5/19 G up mountain
- 5/20 down of p. dogs
- 5/21 cp - Elm Creek - work stone - trail, quail eggs
- 5/22 opp Ferry, 1/2 in p. r - cauld
- 5/23. old beam yard - B creek
- 5/24 Crum to Platte [?] + tol - - used, v used back
ok should a distance of 8 miles - B. a trawler had
they to kill, a can't miss the to shoot the - to trail
G. Eximial Captain of train [Et det doing : of
County + trail [not near river, not in Bluffs]
- 5/25 ~~Wagon~~ wagon repair G. G. G. of Delong 5/50
- 5/26 -
- 5/27 Bluff C
- 5/28 Over land C - now a hill - called Cedar Bluff
no misfit as yet
- 5/29 Got on real water - among a delightful to the over
Then pls - ✓ try over 15 to 20 mph
- 5/30 live trees, 100 yds p. r - send me of Charles Oak
Iv, trees of Sows, hill + hosp. v r to most points ←

1851

HC/

Mrs E. Hodley

23 Wb + 3
typings

Note by W. W. Mann -

Copy of your man of Mrs Foster of Klamath Falls,
Oregon who rec'd a DAR for a copy of pot museum
of some of pioneer relics at Lakeview, Oregon. An order for
pp. fully drawn or seen has checked notes

"Imperial - Obsolete of To Journal man"

- my father & mother Samuel B. & ~~Amelia~~ Amelia Hodley
and Gelesville, Ill. April 10, 1857 to 4 day later in
then my to W. W. says Mrs Melvin F. Hodges who w/ her
from bro Melvin F. Hodley lives at 2210 S. E. Ankeny St
[Portland?] - was born year 4/22/56
Father b. 4/16/21 - now b. 4/21/25

[Hodley Day]

Portland, Clackamas Co, Oregon - June 11/9/51
Journal To Oregon of Thovaren

4/14 left Galesburg, Ill - road

4/16 road to nr 5 mi below Burlington - at that

7/25 Oregon - M. - a pretty set

5/5 to K. v. a CBs, saw large timber stands, see

has are mostly head logs, 2 story - a man at the end
then up - they grew quite a fine app - fern on in
a small flatboat, on they rowed - sleep rough -
I find a more well known place I was sent - and on the
road to side mo. club insurmountable - vast sea of rubbish
Cushons, a filthy thimble set, mostly naked, their cheap &
talk ve of American, his lifts his head say - St
& had to school

5/6 org a Co.

5/7 Is of Potowatome tribe - a pretty tribe &
Barbarian - they follow us up of one camp to another
& in a row of 12 members they of down - us. Our Co consist of
23 wgs horse team ~~to~~ some 50 men & 16 women &
3 children. Paul to lead 17 boys go, & town as the
rains where they live - W. W. lies a little side road
looks like ruins of Soda

[Copied by Bill Morrison]

Who - where?

typewriter - 1 p.

- > 5/18 Crawl mo into I tent
- 6/13 lay on - LB
- 6/14 Crawl night bet LB + P
- > 6/15 am FURY - ev
- 6/16 Staked a course up to P. Let ted & saw lay
up so any anything of up
- > 6/19 f fire the same - small draw of B
- > 6/13 Can't find of SFP - crawl
- > 6/14 up SF 6 - 7 miles then struck and NF
- 6/15 [min]
- 6/16 Paul saw wigwags, after we find we see signal that FS
were all dead. Pile up pile to wigwags & that then cooking
utensils or piled up them, then made mounds in supply table
marked by Ps to Ps. we signal that there is 500 sq - an
negotiation ready to attain to Ps.
- 6/17 the Sublette. We lay - camp to noon to 12 o'clock or more.
Lost 3 steers. Died of rats or poisoning.
- > 6/18 Reached what is now known as Oak Hollow -- stopped here
Early - aft to do some repairs.
- > 6/19 Rachel took over - "my", died that night.
- 6/29 Can to FL
- 6/30 left FL
- 7/3 - good gun
- 7/5 - saw 2 by train
- 8/13 Left on 8 p.m. ^{Thomas} ~~the~~ Fernan + Alameda Humboldt
at E3 cut-off of Calif + we of Oregon. We took
the far trail road.

[The end of his diary book - prices of news, cattle etc
had 5 Bros

WWM

(1111)

Martin A. Collins of San Antonio Chgo, Tex. DAR

Memor. of 2 y8 girls Am to Ps 1852

the top class, part not identical [the Daily Report]

Mrs C of East Ontario (?) - anal glass - chimed -

4/52 Mahaska Ct, Iowa - how often as a hotel & log

12 - 20 mph - Wm of Odell to CBs

young boy 2 yrs, heavy cable rope - last 2 weeks, the case -

at St - of Co., Charles Purvine Capt., S.M. Martin, my

father 1st Lt & legal advisor - found of canal, first inside

Guail system - no to of Is, but smile to deal

Stop 1 day a week - 5 mos - chola face 3 ft

48 men of a Co. - down hill, posts small trees

Is 8 - shaky hands - shakes my mother's foot

CR, IR & PP!!! - after shots handed

the bloomer to - See me trust + turn, after

looked like end of road

HR - We put the to former Yellow to Pines ?

at summit met of Rev for Canon, my brother's father

He had 4 dpts + my 8 - child he had met as in he end 1849

Santa Rosa Pelham

X

Elizabeth Robinson Smith (Baird) (type name 4 ps)

Madison Ct, Mo, 13 child, 4 & 2 dead, 11 to Co 1849

1st D mother + 2 sister d. Chole, 1 yr later father died

Fall sedent + a cure require, (Capt. (?) rest dead - his

gustave - Is covered at size of Is - shut at 3-4

had loss - at SP full, to St W, C + 48 buses 1st, 800

Amos to father Ps - burst 19 times to by my sister;

had to be down off end of butt of whip - prepar of recovery, but

fortunate the woman did not return that night some lost of

death to Co of us - We so up cholera, careful of diet

SP 7/4, stop of Mrs Pales - a murder commit

day of, then in a guy trial, chryman rope bringer no

action of tyg and end of is to the main raels + th other throw

over to birds of a tree + draw tant, while the day

was to breath her

Cholera - Oriskany Falls - 1 man dead - to avoid,
 4 cos of 10 up each - 13 months sternal, makes
 Berlin of Cape, shorts eye - two, long in Galea
 3 X sharp sharp into upper course, stop the exhaust
 from to the - at ~~count~~ dig up spade,
 line to solid part of air
 Asante cholera but crop up eye at Bay Sully
 GR & Brown - Lane C-O - 1000 SV (?)
 to Goodwin, to Pitt R -
 Is well in. Rivers - to Samuelson, hda FR
 Seen of my marriage, dog from white scuffs
 Nov 1 - 7 mol to Bristol Camp
 Ferguson & deep alone - fully two men 3 child,
 or other dead

X
 [Francis Leoni Dan] DAM 4/20/1915 tyrod city 6 pt ^{Regen,}

4/16/65 exp Liberty Pramm, Madis CT, Leoni -
 from group of altar ~~to~~ T Wiskum - Cholei Cook shoot
 himself - Reg, den of 1 small
at O had to wait 2 weeks, till Col. Chapman just he E
 to really - 4 mile track 30 by - he over 6 x 4, up up the
 any time, hardly go to SL -

I = scene, an hour, present of tobacco - see stones
 when from river, 2 men / go fire homebase
 Q desert, came to at night, man walk, note v O take
 turn walk - to light load - at non soil not suitable
Dred boat & workers on bank of 3 mos

Pics of St - at irregularly, horse team had go
 out, a Uncle Mike had up behind - payin 4 by each
 to VC to Jaci & payin for feed in there
 Got under Jean Scott's plan 5/10/65 (?) -
 than any heavy-woolery dress a for a w col, new
 colic dress & feet all dead up - a Ben River
 mail to Cyru King Dan 6/67

From Samuel later Scott 7 child + Uncle Mike
 From John Rane

Info for detailed by my mother Frances ~~Leoni~~ Leoni
 (Scott) Dan to my secy / Francis ~~Henley~~ Dan /

(typewrite) Yen ?

Powells Mrs Kate Price "Our comel wye" read to
Annotest Chapth, DAR, Kellid # 3/25

3/26 to Wyo. def Danielle, Vermont - ct, Oll - 80 people
Q the to wye Nathan Mayan + Drussella Price, son + dgt of Jane,
grand - of Mayan Mayan - reamed WV 9/56

Furley, Furley, Mrs May "When I tried to plant a wye" 24p typ
of Paing Gron Chapth, DAR, ml

left me (small girl) 1843 - "whoa, than + go" ~~glor~~
gee - go ahead go left, go right
Capt / you best to Is to keep the - goal human

200 wye, 1000 people - train
we we called to apply to - DAR of 3 wye, stand

Then have to find the wye, plected at first wye
we ball, beamed when the wye trail have to wye,
frustrated, into beaming - wye wrapped me - a sheet of tape

at first - wye (?) wye put me - course, I fell in
thine who were in wye had to make road as the wye, Chap
down tree, look by wheels of chair - gd of Be Fremt,
who helped in thine - He comel me

wye left about first Nov - 6 miles - gls
but to me of wye - used cows

Henry O. Ferguson - 1849 typewrite / 15 p
assort assort in wyeing of N Ferguson 1/18/1918
Healdsburg.

facts WW - wye May c. 7 ched in wye, Jan 13
+ May 0 "

respect, wye. 4/49 2 wye - OX
574 to Kansas wye - Co. 40 wye ~~to~~ 42 (mobile guide)
Dona Co. 300 wye; 250 coll - Capt of S Kirkpatrick
a preacher - had M Gulebovs, - Pa - comel founder
red deive - wye skin, all 4s led Bear, come stay wye
Council Centre wye wye stay wye in ex Car wye
in A wye wye - wye of Capt wye

log vocals

train

whiten

assort

comel

Harrison News Herald - Colby, Ohio 6 (28) 73

"County Seat Moved" by John S. Campbell Box 164, Colby, Ohio 43907

The Morris has given a few notes on trip made by certain Harrison Ct men, started late March, 1849 - Stg 11-15 men.

3/20 to Martin Ferry Ohio R. - 3 wgs + 21 mules w/ extra wheels, axes, harness - 6 mules - 11 men identified include Lewis Lewtens Capt



Welloxy

7/10 shot B f camp - Ct 28 dead cattle

7/14 Rock I - Visit to Natural Rock

Saw man of fms dated 6/11 [Reuben, Shepherd & Hackley]

Explained to Goble & Owen at its spring - explain about gold (by antio co)

7/15 Dred wase to give - go down of prospects

7/18 thru South Pass - snow banks 4-6' deep

(6) Jan 2 - Stillman Stillman(?) no (7/19 to Owen)

stood in to eat calamity joint last water of 2 oceans

Smaller here we left the information trail

7/20, a party of me, Stillman (?) & son, father & mother dead by 2 am & depth of 15 sphars, thru to Road of Colby!

Left ferry OR - ponder to cross down to lower ferry 3^m

bad time getting down last time 7/23 until 2^{pm}

cut off before - the express news for Cal. (X) to the

turning of the troops that way

7/26 Cluded - hi wife, Saw Trent Penn & several other Penn

w - 27 of hi army out 7/30 Skiff into M great BR

140 Is left yesterday f few of govt troops, chief of chur a man

& v heard thru the express news in false

8/21 Paul to Parkville boys who had their cattle stole by Is

8/30 Can to Hot Spgs [cont vol 2]

Rever Sp

Black Rock Spr

Oct 18 to Lausmas 2066 f Omaha

IR

SP

PP ?



~~Wagon~~ - horse ~~4/15-7/17~~ 4/15-7/17

Cal HS '62

Wagon, Ohio

1849

D. Jaggan - for my m. journal - brown leather bound 5x8 x 1"
msp cloth or seal unpaged 1/2 full

8/18/46 - a few pages Journal NY 2/3/44

7/15 SP - to left 20 m a low rock called table mt in ca to D & v had
a bicolor fire burning all night - you topog even y RMS (and to map
PS a very much 1/2 m

7/16 where: Fit + St no sep - take SCO, the st somewhat narrow but most y
to go ~~through~~ through, and you v water - from blong in desert, show
that the people of the land n in the water

7/15 to Rio Verde 7/9 & Co of ms had just started a
journey here, 27- my - trailer down of ~~to~~ 50 m EFL to here

7/12 strike FCB trail 7/13 BR near Smith Farm - since
unable to see it

7/16 Stet - old gate - very nice unable to see up

7/18 3 tables or divide 7/19 FH above the FL but more
stranger of more timber in it - to an Feller, with the look of

attracted crowds of visitors - pass to of FV to FH
RRom - sketch Rock / Mountain Rock - City Rock

7/24 of SL & Calif road - Goni Creek mt

7/27 visit to town spots on the Spys Valley

8/14 to Sun of H - Creek Horse Spys

to travel in Salt trace R 8/19 then I camp in - 1st to
Ashtabula Co. in left corner are north of us - v 1st st m 27 m
after ~~some~~ vale of Caskin - open in timber (27)

Donna Celen 8/22 on sun - don yuba South Ala
up the v groups 8/25 BR - stop ~~at~~

35 m above of John to mine (8/26) - can - a half of the
train - by other at Shop Haller, go back, in

8/30 Phenix - am - Co dinner 9/1

4 m m m - about 200 9/3 John River

9/5 Vann - Frate R, and Frant

9/6 See

[last entry Jan 10]

6/19 G Birch McComa, Michigan rd 1 FS
 6/24 Deer Creek Sta 6/25 Paul Low x up P. Bulger ;
distance between them 9 miles 6/26 Red Butte

6/27 Lawrence T PR 6/28 IR, mid Sta 1 m E
MS given its present name by for FTH to SL

6/29 DE a car with 4 tires motor 7/2 Deer Stn

7/5 dam lot note, a por wry to celebrate to 4th

7/6 SW crossing, under S ha a few rods back thin beds, SP 746

7/7 Park Creek, Dry Sulph, ju of Ca x Ore road

7/9 BS - to GR 7/13 Harris Fir (H-F)

7/14 up Bloom Water, 2 m to Fir Bridges

FB

7/15 at to Fir to a dam lot note, had a few trees

6 man - 6 dams, Retreat to camp above same

log beds, low beam 7/16 Muddy Ford, Ben R

7/19 Echo C

7/20 Echo Canyon

7/21 today (23) Red Fir, Weber Res, Coalville, Weber Res

7/22 Park Valley

7/23 to SL, 100 ft, low to the top x

last note, low to church today; hand truck & some lies

7/25 to SL

7/27 Lake R, Ben Elder City

7/29 Ben R

8/3 Deep Creek Canyon

8/4 Plover S

8/5 Cassin C, Park C

8/6 City Rocks

8/16 festival of usual Red Skis all note,

distinct debris I w saw, low H-R, town along up (Lancaster)

8/30 low from tranches ret

9/1 Big Meadows (H-City)

9/2 x high falls Ranch

9/3 Park Ranch

9/4 Mumpsey Sta, Baily Spgs

9/5 Tranche Res, from all found up

9/8 Tranche Meadows, cd near Tranche

9/10 Summit JWS

10/30 Santa Res - X ok lumber yard

Letter to note 10/30

and Sierra V 9/10 - Chills -

from



Robt Amosley Amesbury, Noble Engle trail

(Summit, 1967)

~~too heavy~~

The Family of David Jackson Leppin or Dines Deseal E - 8
Hamm - m - Leppin - written 1864
Bond transportation pb. - machine copy (?)

back track
wait

6, 1841 - at 23
Leppin home - Libertyville, Iowa 3/29 / 64 start of Nevada trail
7/9 wheel to Plattsmouth, cross - steam ferry, 1/2 m Belm P,
a part of the town. Pay \$1.75 of Bowie knife
5/10 from to Glenwood 5/14 up MR both the Pacific
v Sit. Manji, C. Maguire C 5/12 13 m west of Plattsmouth
8/20 big place west of mump R, cap of NT - road crowded of Es -
150 up warty to cross 5/14 210 up ahead of us
5/15 184 up ahead of us, a line of ferry to CBs (5 mile)

5/16 Civil MR - cd N end Oc, m 1 ferry
5/18 to Reed Ranch, 16 m w. hay com + more at exh price. Daily
Elk Horn City 5/19 Sun - same
5/20 from, Haystack Ranch. 5/21 with Paul when to road
station to PR 5/22 Shale C, Columbia or Loup F
5/23 LF ferry 5/25 Line tree R, Haystack R
5/26 Coal camp LTR to City, at thence settled
5/27 wood R 5/28 up in E ~~to~~ N center
5/29 Paul thru NE today, 3 hrs a po, heavy + dark - and
Opp FR now where we stopped of dennis (A) River too to to walk
2 m wide, 9 channels, up to NW

5/30 Elk C - fur sandy white elm - Buffalo C
(head of Bl. opt Ec) 5/31 B Creek 10' deep but no water
6/1 ~~Man~~ man coal shot, his wife - 3 C, Paul Weller Lake
6/2 Shale C 6/3 P Sump + P Spy at its head.
Canon C - Black mud C 6/4 with Bluff Farm
6/6 R-snow C 6/7 Wolf C
6/8 Castle C, Castle bluff 6/9 Cist Creek
6/10 Cobble hill, ARB resembles Castle Breasts - CHR, 4321 mOR
6/11 CR 6/13 S/S, Spy Creek, Sx run -
Pome + catl 6/15 down a river
6/16 Rowing C, FL, 3rd letter, 522 of MR
6/17 6/15 Nt sun. highest road ever - what was set his
foot up.

5/14 BB - Steam nearly as by - to Mohouse
7 4 wags + 21 men of Ohio Council of Cape H C Mann
[letter says Olemtangy Co. of Delaware Co.] makes 28 men 6 wags

5/16 Wythe + Walnut c

5/17 Sully c - LB

5/18 Antiles + B

5/21 degant to Plat, kept with - paul.

Our tea saw with of plenty of wiggles - it, our bread mostly

5/20 Great Coats a suitable - P was skated 1/2 timber, 20 m below FC

Q The v is ge of Ferry + STJ + I Road

5/23 FC Combs in my puff treat in kindly answering all our
questions promptly - P's absent over hard winter, gone south, but de-
signed to buy Pine bar Is v ectu all their time.

Fu
Is

Last Fri a murder among Es. One man insulted another wife. The
husband split his head up an axe. a case of inquiry prominent in particular
homicide so the dead man in burial + a Co. moved on, food fresh
up a serious reflection. - 150 - from here, - 1100 up hill paul.

Crim

5/25 tramp to stone

5/26 to w impland eyes

5/27 at pass of Platt, bluffs across mng to char of mt - Murren

B. paths of the mt

5/30 another gully-washer

5/31 from ge - whole looking pretty any hills, skeleton of 4 men - paul

6/2 to Paul, 18 m above of usual crossy place - 1/4 mt

16 m to N/E

6/5 to act, no gran 1/8 m

AH

6/6 at gorge thru ch the road of the rapid fall passes. We went to
same Gorge 1/2 m to its mouth. we made saw of signs. close to foot of v
seen some by xy - Castle Bluffs - Wagners opp. these in
regular Norman trail + cone direct of Crown Bluffs - report of I deposits

women

6/7 Bs Opp across - magnetic form - identity almost or recede. on one side,
They increase v approach on the other - a few others precious property

Many women acc to hrs v whole families Es + paul del.

On way from back to - chert last Sully + one woman - 1 ca is encounter

6/8 to Court House, immense oak rock; Dime + Grop low heaven

6/9 Mosquito voracious - from CR, a massive pile of cement paulstone.

6/10 up Grop + peaks ready to the skies

6/11 up rear of Scots Bluff - fine coal opp - gap in view - look in
retrospect view of the magnificence of Paul period. he resembles the
Great Canyon. 6/12 now on Castle. Dime, Cupola. Spinn

+ character of Grop v all direct as of 1 major - How Creek

Original fr. of an E fr. of 1845 contents of Solomon's ...
reprint Lane Ct P.H.S. Soc 1960 - fr. of book - in the
Vale or Park, Stuffed, etc



Henry Clay Huston Journal 1852-60, vol 1 Lane Ct P.H.S. Soc
of my 75. Mrs Anne Huston, 1852, etc 1960

6. 1858 - 2 Jan 1859 - 6 mo diary [1852] to Oregon - incl Lydia Zimmet
dys Isaac Z 1866 12 chils

4/5/52 to Ore. City 9/20 - Wash to Butte, Lane Ct 9/24

He kept a diary in the plains, which diary in entire life

1856 journal no military cases



William North Steuben & His Journal 1849-1850

Bound typewritten 37 pp. ed. Henry E. Rutledge, Haystack 1960

6. 1808 Steuben, Oneida Ct, NY; return 1850 by Thomas

2 1857 w/ wife + 2 child in oval stage - settled - Visalia -
then again of Wells Fargo

An orig + return - 2 Bks, of pencil 3 3/4 x 5 3/4 for "Memoranda"
1. 1849 journal, 57. T 9/25. Began at an unidentified pt a few mi W St J
& ends at Lassini's Ranch, a pt near what is now Vina, Tehama Ct. Origin
in press - Return Steuben Bitterroot of Visalia - Book 2 plus typed copy
both books in Bancroft L

571. Shel at camp - Helms - [us] [prob copy of]

573 I copy a - Oak tree + child - etc line of E eyes

574 half rising a red dirt pass, I bury gr. Laid its head pro-
tended to cultivate but it would be to find of the slothful

576 Ready + meditate - water + 1 - smoke - its hay
and, gamble of cards - "This was a novel scene"

578 pan Masonary Sta - need my civig to make the to
garden of the world - home of the elm

5710 no sign of civil life - one vast meadow, Road equal to
those in a prosper E. the towns Mincham

5712 Green field by a chys at - destination to a blue - goal Comynge
of the Horry, in June to stay + to see with - no direct

I transcribe

Is

project

Chole

Lead my internal perimeters. — We share on milk & medicine
Lorenson said: hot water, mustard drafts, next Cynthia — She ok
The photo — mother, but most of the & send to the child in yg people.
Lorenson near death, but recovers — fumigation

✓ "Look - to wilderness" — ~~look~~ Great loss; long in a purple +
swollen — he got lost & worked about, up water, until exhausted —
wolves — "on deck up IS" — CR let them spin physically

CR

— mil-jos Fr. for tp ABC; now not road found & by ?
Bacon gray bread & molasses — Father & God Sonnet

FR

✓ Intercept & maltreated of IS, try to lose me, travels w/ father
of gun — saved 1 = party of hunters; of ^{jobs} Powell by to
Fit Hall — you to see Captain Clark & under-magnate

IS

✓ "Og don Smoke Run" — the last day, time to cut his skin throat
left SR where Hurling now is, & can to Bunt Run

✓ The Clark spot also takes flight — rescue onto bread parts in CR
death of our Jesus Clark — Gratitude to father, who
became — precisely — Boston route — land three

To Hawaii's Prina 10/16 (me Sala)

Father & 3rd wife left — he stayed

~~at Santa~~ An Umbrella, mother gun with 2 Elychi

Harker [just]

Own SL — I Spy — Miller Sp — parents — Ambers

Spy — Shaleen — Egan Camp, my — Rely V mil sta

Drank S — 3 me of Dromedary overlook us; Camp by border

Camp & Sleep S up to Dromedary — Dry C

Acute Mayton — ~~to~~ — Peon Camp — to HR

✓ Up truly R — yg of truly measure — 20 me ja-Vign Act

✓ Washed City (Pens) — Hannes Pass road — Captain Pean (my +)

to Yuba R of Yuba, for Canal, Surpan

Rank — Marysville — 3 more overdone

Expem of G B Larson - Can, of GOT - Melan ct, also
3 Proj Ethel Davis, Bl. - 1874, pt 131-4

To Can of 60 - 104 day - the plain
Zitwin



Repor of yrd Galleu Prens, Farland 1971

Admette applegate Hoxim on to Oregon ... a true Story of
a yrd gale of ut to west, El Waldo Taylor
(Winnem. Idaho, 1947) 47 bn pb

re her mother's of to Oregon - Mary Ellen Todd, b. clay ct Dec
1843, related to Mary Todd - M. John Applegate - Oregon
fully man to Wisconsin - 1852 // Christoph meulen //

Todd Todd: me 11 - July to ask feed a few chicks
elate pups - me 9 - ing up red wheels - is up rich stomach rotis
from famine for some - open Bar Bar, Begin - cars + litter
+ blow, walk dy hove - box of litter Cyprin
Henry - finds details + camp detail, smugg - disaster
detail - Commit ing up - ridge pole, near lotus of hills - me
Louvin - drop of leaves - Bible read, + type origi
To I was Kenn Order - I was here

Race of the End - men + saw thly - Cher shishes - Co of 100 ups, rotate
Detail over clay or Wakapusing, to make Cardinal End - Other to
trick to muscle in out, feels has to use whip ... man
open to my part, man had to replace ten

"Crossing the E Kan" - off of 100 ups all had gone xcay
A - Grate, tedrose, us + one other - Call by beta site
"From Pramp to Pham" - hide over to off in harm

Father explain this plegis - ride control, up skin over ankle - pe
by st of rod - over lady origi mole less - Row up Conva shoes -
Cross PR at GT - the to E road of CBs pl ours - learned
newspaper, Franklin Pres then Pres, poth prob wax was
Left also up our family, Miss Sarah Jam

"The Silver People Have Men" - pm PA not of FL 7/4
Child epidemi - reky + fungy, lope in unlora otole, Fate

Needles

Mrs W. Packard "Early in T.C."

Early 1849 skinned line of great Army of good hunters. From Bloomington several (named) — then of 1850 for Buzzin. I was in that

3/21/50 group included John W. Dow — John O. Clark, Green B. Larsson, Hugh Taylor (a 49er) M. W. Packard, B. Bennett Elmer, Loggins & Co a yg English, "Perry" + Colonel g-m Billy Lampson, at St. Jo pool also by other incl Dr BE Dodson, Thomas Larsson, Lyton L. + others — c. 50 persons

Cross mts. 4/25 struck out tent; Gus miss (incl Larsson) had 12 horses, + my, depend — old dead grass — tree burial "repulture" — gravel + moss-grown, to be done [Early on trail]?

I

We Early, got no new dust of our own — after go up CB road, one cta line to FB trail — to return team, we may take wagons across stream the men cd do what + horse cd not — ropes + pulling bars

!

20-25 mph — Taylor camp

B

5/6 Big early — Immense herd of B — LB thrust frames heads down, tails erect, go tremble, dist thunder — immense sway of sawlogs — reared off of ground + yellow

B

FK: — contact re B chaps — SPC 5/16 5/18 att

I

Is of roy Copper color, all biggers — Count of Sitting Bears (camp down to river) — propose all chapters. We made, heavy crowd shells — the on you see of mobile real — The has made the pro — to be

5/27 FL. Big pile — Lt Duncan, an old Bloomington man

? 6/1 Lu Prude — Gargoyls bees, nutrit bulge

6/4 WS — page book, astrosia, a worm, 41 —

blowing in fuel — ropes to go thru

IR — Oh, why go thru unit of crowd ?

?

France Peep — an old project + tattered. US flag planted of to summit — We should to insure to intrepid band of voyagers who planted in there

6/10 SP — me (29) The Coal Branch Division

me not quite 30 — to my of Southern C-O of and FB ? ? ?
St the Si V, to Skeple Rock, H, CR I Hayton ?

Roll of Taylor Camp in copy of Bl Old Woods Library 5/4
lists 16 entries — not include those of at SP

No 1. — fuel class, B B Larson, Lyn Finner, Car Barns,
M W Packard, Hugh Taylor

recollections or narrative rare book pl^r
F. M. Miquiethes, m. D., / From England to Calif. : Life on the MS
(J. A. Wilson, Pub. Sacramento City, Calif., 1868) (46 pp 1-32

? written - novel form : Jan 56 in Essex - "my journal"
Storm at sea ~~3/27~~ 3/27 to NY harbor on - of children
12/16 in Iowa City - Early - Spg we started of Omaha City, NT - Ps degraded
In Omaha lynching of horse thieves (~~1857~~ [1857]) - gales behind
accessory rats off fence - end of city
after 2 yrs - O I xpnd wish to tr "plain across" - Father town off 2
PP = 1859. I go out w/ g-man, to drive his cart - reduced to walking
banquet thru burning sand, bleed at toes, Mr P. paper ride - Obituary
Left of Florence - sent & ground - Thin mesh - that blow away while
eatng - inseries - Open to Dutch Cook year of Ireland - Mr P. & Agnes fall
accid in NWs while cooking, he save Mr P - no gratitude
Old gun barrel layg and p. 1850 migration, we use barrel to set
triddle - Fr E alive onot - great, parents brief
B have - B after me, soul of Mr P after gap - cream
Cattle eat "every year", some kind of bank grass - runaways,
break up wagon, cattle bone brown & dimil - Mr P stamp & cursed, & others
in number of the Ch. - I study when he left Florence
It was party 50, rest of cattle w/ cows, scalp done, no sleep,
cut thorns of knives - man probably open to sell his wife, how to get
trades to intruder, ground of flour, sugar, coffee -
I may wonder why think of it is scandal of fiction romance & fiction, I can
assume the only see a true synopsis of a 3 mos of - to fl.
Wm w/ scandal scandal should treat & spinin cattle?
SLC - another boys re exploit as Gintle Army - all were -
knory - check of floxa hair, color of hair - murder of St. Vante Bule & other



Early Era to Ca. 1849-50 Paenal. Lewis in pl^r
Report of hills of supper & notes, 3 miles Center, Bloomington, Ill. 1928
Photo [my wellen Paenal] 1850 1-15
Preparator Note: Early Era to Ca. Mr P's paper, "Early Era to Ca." first publ 1899
in "Wm Recol of McLean Ct." 40th Paper 300 copies, most destroyed - then for
fric ch sweep Bloomington, Ill - June, 1900 the Ed of Prof Davis the
Good old time of McLean Ct. cty m. Harrison Burg, ditto the ed 30
copies - P. Box 1820, Lewis - Bloomington
1850 to Ca, return 1855.

Beloo m. Shun

The trail of Puma

pub
Souta rt

X

A Date Com to Com

the Day of John S. Griffin, and Surge

of Henry's Regt., 1846-47 - SIC CATS 1943

Souta rt

X

Royal Posters Pattern

Souta rt

the g of

recalled

X

George Hart, Gray to Plain (pub) in case of T6

6th Faulk's trip of Com Ct Mich to Marysville Com 1864
(Jan 1867) 23 pr

Said our farm - then plan to just make - by for to Grinnell D.,
stage to Omaha; on 5/1 - we up and 1 boat to Glasgow, as for -
boat / go, the 200 m to O

- > Lr 6/18 a dog that owned, but is not from
- > for while wait, keeped local Central Pacific RR ch had just arrived
gradly to west coast new R. even of us showed a dog, & felt proud
- > E heavy it is late - while of mosquito, did not advise
- > 150 to Loopfork - Puma Is, beach - about 2 B skin
- > 263 to Fox Kennel - G Mrs Lumsy, 7 Nbr. Mrs, and 1 remaining
idea of Spanish Corp
- > Puma spp out just with some O - PR is so much alcohol
- > analysis had, retro - dark - they had said a hatched hi
- > the 3 lms
- > I w/ letter of US VPM Plot 1A way all Es to B in their goal
of hatched Is - tail of Mr. Lores (for Ent. Oms) is in traces
some actual attacks - at age 100 wins of found Buffalor
shu. 500 Is. sun lance - found of man & Sp

X

p 10 to small stage road or Harris Ferry, GSS & other blips. For some of the attacks
of Is, were found - then has - now due to 7 legs

Muller's 5 str - FB ac Calif soldier - full legs SIC, best
place to sell anything - down - Camp Douglas E of city. Calif soldier,
boad in sented ag. By - us was 3 mo of O, Tucson

15839 Crownshield & train

X

a of to Ca: letter of the address Dean 1882 ed Kather
Dean Wheeler (Temp Fla 1979) pb 26 m

Prin or Pritye des - Comm of Gov Fowell of Miss as Comm of
State of Calif - to DL & Gov - Dubuque 4/23, the topic of duty
rough part of of FL - June. Then religion until Society; law to SF
huber big, base to his & chi - very grateful but obscure
in Isabelle Maxmore 7/7

4/23 Dubuque - lt 12 days to CBs

5/13 Scotch Bro. Down - problems

5/20 Temp 2 m & ker & abv 3 of mR. on CBs

a hand all hole - Gen man of a whole ct Booby - to av -
hr pool built, 2000 in hole over rooms would full of people u x c
such a clutter & moral medly my men our - ing of auctioneer
Sm to 12 my Booby my, can't keep up of 10,000 feet

5/24 to Bell you ought to see to give him, they are in see of
syzygy all win parts & short dream & Booby

(Old Book)

6/22 FL, Niant turn : write - and last note, 25 days road
of mR, 522 m - gale sickly ctmans, given of rain clump, grip of
the windows, then of the patient, hundred of men Go - now & men, 1 of
u x c. I only one with has not be seen - Carol has nearby deserted -
The men begin to hear once more - death exceed all etc you -
the patient & tougher - I am the only person - to road, I am a man
a car on - mechanical maning - wade along as - med to of an pit
up part - my bar!

Sleep 5 hrs - we is of mR to F, can see it quite early this mor the
glass - begs a strike 107

7/11/52 Sec Rm Don NOT Exp Se 7/28 & and turn 8/28
filling poor to drive HR - at note I / tables off Robb & not more on with
want study next my. I had to look myself - him 2 or 3 of the last days.
B. & throw the coal legal - was over x day day - water 50 gals at the end of
H. - you are did of effort

7/12/52 SF - wrote up 17 to 40 hr at SL - deal - best
of the up if I had the I or you to with of you - [to Cal 15 51]

fushin

des to

packy

7/4 no one celebrates

7/5 lake & nice boat - PR - mosquito swarms

7/5 get up early of the house in days - 10 m + camp at all
CC 7/9 I NP to at

7/4 on top of bluff. Can W. Cranes over of acc

7/13 per of Ch rock, sand of mt summit - near it is
Clerks office - Lawrence B. of N Platt

7/14 CR anti of 2 depen

SB?: 7/15 at lake sta, they tell us to of empty depen in Es - they attain
2 of 1 up - turn R + kill other Es - but to run, considered +
per of 1 up (E SB?)

7/16 take up + to 18 m away to SB, bad road but good
scenery 7/19 near summit of Is

FL 7/20 detail of F in air if of shot at Is, had to recapture

7/25 Es - up in hill of Is - open digg, closely ~~to~~ murren

Is 7/26 Note - tree, Is had to be here

7/29 Do not stop to buy man, careful - dry up of water

Pass Durlocke number

tragedy 7/30 Saddest event of my life / the day my husband aerial shot himself +
was buried by wildfire - agony - Mr Daily drove my trailer of me
I + Alice drive in trailer

8/1. Gun PR bridge - for Rappahannock

8/8 IR a good night

8/9 Hell Gate / E fill + hill

Plaster Sta

8/10 Silver Rock

8/12 One Spj

8/14 Rock Refin number

8/16 SP Pacific sp

8/21 GR Mac Bean

Now due to 7 up

8/24 Church Butte

8/25 millerville

8/26 FB mail letter but no Ester mail

Is too bad of work to run

8/27 Gork Corvella

9/2 Hull. R

9/6 S.C

9/10 will try to go thru up of up

9/19 I Spj's

9/21 Fish Spj Sta

9/23 Deepic

9/28 Esu Canyon

9/30 Dubois Valley

10/1 Dismal mt

9/17 Austin, Numb - [end]

at the break when I am had of -

left up to child -

check still-bow - Aunt, REV

baby familiar dist of shore?

how can child find?

in FL (?) Govt off of lake - some of adobe?
St. of 1 adobe in the of Is
wonder see lake from 9/1

Auto Spj

Candrell, Chas. "Cdr - Pls?" CTS SF 1922
SW

X

Calif Ho! of Sal Boat & mule try 1849 (1896)
Alcohol of Willie Heald Jr. Tompkins Ct. Hutton Ithaca NY 1972

W. B. Taylor, author of acct of cross-cut exped
adv of Ithaca Co. (Ithaca & Calif. Mfg. Co.)

See Dewitt Hnt Soc of Tompkins Ct, I
121 E Court St. Ithaca NY 14850

X

Jour of Mrs Mary Ringo a D- of her trip acc to Pls
- 1864 and also Mother Bill Cuskey (Santa Ana Apr 1916)

[Xerox con]

Western (?)

5/18 Mother Ringo found me 2 - 2 yrs or more
70 yrs. I will now copy mother diary - for where?
5/19 trail 2 miles acc to Mr & Mr. L. Chas. how plain of sea - other

- Ferry over 5/26 Kinnikinnick, Groshepp C.
- 5/27 Walnut C 5/28 Grand
- 5/29 Seneca 5/30 Uncle John's store
- 5/31 Marysville 6/3 Rock Creek - named canal

ad a Sora Fly, Southern acc ahead 6/5 LB
6/7 John's got foot hurt belly of ~~for~~ wheels may over it
Arrested by man on 1/2 way & killed - a wagon wheel
Hose kd on 1 his horses, down orphan
6/8 B. killed, young & tender - Nine miles from
6/10 32 mile Creek 6/11 PR dead of gear

6/12 Doby town, hiss of dirt - B. skeleton
6/13 1/2 mile to Fair Kinnick, not allowed to go thru
2 miles, Kinnick City: a nice young town. I buy
myself & dress here - John's quit sick

6/14 fair number - Deal I stepped - feet doubled road
went to its head 6/19 thankful to V. Ben Halp - a present
6/20 stud S. a mil just - they stop to sleep ev up for when US
up logs of wood: new bear place - Lake Front
6/27 Opaline Camp 6/25 by to boat?
7/3 the boat has been towed up to the pt & we a crossy slow

Camp
acc
murder

<

I

>

recorder he 1849? Catts 48
1850?
Dout R. Handman the Log of my Grand Uncle St J. (1908) p 1-67

Rushville
Schyle Ct. see - go w/ 2 cows - masses of 4-5
4/2 lv f Warsaw - here all f heavy rd output & stop & stop - fms &
Alaska mo. - Duke of OFN to St J - novel news re fms.
switch back to OFN
5/9 near more at Iowa line - own am of 14th Capt Manlove
[Vis of post - early part of month of 49th]
[What, no fms?]

Salt Creek - 2nd ev PRV - by me near G3
B chips - fms - ur - middle of Elm; game game
As wife near down to PR - parallel road, seen of
mo. train of 70
SP fms - mul - fms - I vs ~~at~~ in pennula
efferen of of cheaty of tradin
Pleasant water to CHAR - CR

FL
FL of clay & shale brick, 15' walls, summit of - wooden
pinnacle, range of hds. by 150 - bridge on LR(?)
Cm NP 2 up side (ashl top) - alkali detrit

7/3 Rock I // one of very few dates //
to PS - 6 days 7/10 - 35 mi down
take 20 (he said to HCO)
M fms of CR - rup at road - none & pully to post.

Propelled fms 12
in SS - a new C-O had be made
noticed at top of S&C road - Cattle Valley
Green's Cut off of hd of H to hds FR, all ²⁰⁰
There was took or did not reach until now
CR - Cm ma of SV 9/13
Woomville 9/21 5 mo 15 days
of fms - no man here - but 2 open
X

Over Salt Lake trail - Free 49 - cut & kill B. hds
Intro of my Grand Uncle p 1-67
Cm of on Salt 49 with a LH 1/30/50 NY Sun
4 rep - i cleared Plan Dicks 5/11/50
Reel of "Pony - S. of Pony" (see also Stone)

James Addison Ellis

4127 to Canton, Mo 517 Es - Kikabady (Nickabady)

5113 to Bluffs - camp on muddy soil of OC

Poplar C - Shinn - Shinn

5117 at France, going out of side - to Chemin Ferry - would v to
back to Plattsmouth, loc 160 m? - a layer of sand called

fung

Albion Hs - 5121 sunnel - getting up across

5122 Cross - fung + pal - haul to 600 lbs flour to K

5124 strain Plattsmouth soil 5126 prey

5127 to NE + PM roads

5129 in FE - 5130 at Dighton on to 61 up. 84 m

Alpha Owen "Lynn" - Is day or PC

Is
Is

614 Chad St - man bug, shot accid of - I

615 to NB in day, Lt up 22 count, sides to stop, rejoin
Lt pal man / rejoin, open messy

616 O'FB 618 Alhaha St

619 4 m of Beaver R 6110 Beaver, to OCC

6111 Can man quality, not sup of Es - Pale line at
these gray or Beaver order back

6116 today local Calo Legis has a charter to to road we to run 4 mi and
pay toll, at 6118 6119 an or Ferry

fung

6120 on Ferry bill of 52 up + km \$400 - \$20.50

of u - settled up of leg of Ferry, pay man \$10 as char

Camp - La Prase 6121 1/2 of to pull out

cut out to guy, not ful to work, from of Be Holly and at at

Crane

6123 detail of Camp with At Allen - not guilt of bug

of Smith has a SP \$225 4-60 ea up (2 man per - other of
would of the same but it was as dear)

6125 via Dale 6127 By Lynn - I, attan

had a receipt with Sherran - Fr Holly and FB

6126 to 8/28 Nevada

The Rollin Collection of W. A. of Th W. Street

Rep of Project Under Lily Chamber (X-4) for 1948

Across the West by Cord by 1865 - day by pt

Hermette Catherine Ellis + Jan Adeline Ellis - Ed. Beryl Lechner
Honolulu, ~~1961~~ 1861 575 - 914, 1865

Bud & J A Ellis - Came in up to date of Jan A. Ellis

Lynne is Eliza Ellis Agnew, sister of J. A., + mother of Chris Agnew

1st & missing 578 - 1 used ocean

572 passed boundary line Mo + Iowa, now in Iowa - E. Nicoloburg

574 camp near CB - a trail would be made in back of

5713 trail Mo., camped at military bridge w of O - CBs + O back trees

At full of heavily philosophy

5715 ~~some~~ - not - I of his touchstone - after

5716 Elkhorn City 5717 the front, miss I's + the jay yet
name official to molest clothes mended

5722 Cross Platte - ~~some~~ had to cross to west of jay for the first Shinin?

5724 at last last near V of P

5726 PR needs me of the corner of an evil spirit

5727 ~~the~~ Mary's of lanes + trees

5729 Paul the Dogton + Fry, Camp at Dobytown

5730 Capt Owen 5731 Cut-ups + drunk ocean

6/1 Plum Green Bad party 6/3 man shot accident (wider, leaves from

6/4 panther Galt's woods - ocean at Clad sail by to us 215 up who
had rail coast + 2 pieces of artillery [Cannon?]

6/5 Lt Andy count other side in novel, shot at 3 I's (man go)

6/6 O'Fallon's Cliffs - pretent place I or saw - some band of I's

6/9 Sullen chp of climite

6/10 Paul Old Camp, called more Beaman State - 30 the crossing

6/11 Camp cross at Jelly - 4/17/6 man shot was accid (7. alt)

6/12 G Clive Shuril, what in camp they 9 yr led to land here
Now at Bluffs

6/15 vacated name - G from Boston / Elz Carpenter

6/19 at Luther, at cross to P - frag - wait

6/20 the Govt has shed no frag - quarry + backing
Camp at Cash Pool

6/23 Detent at Camp Allen (some men - 1 to took some log for - old by
Belay I Dove Smith just by us went to Platte - old to 275

Camp over the pay / to SL is could not
See 7/4

Intro
I

PR

PR

PR

Ex cont

I >

ct

under hole - Capt of E train arrested - 12 shots,
some blanks. - we find's hard to keep of the guns - we
had Scott in - M + that M or I was by shot of the murder
Canon & other - who trial, credit & executed Scott

Brewster death of Mayflower

GR fine spirit had 9 wives, all in Sh except your
charge of 40 fine in effort to commit, fall in, sev miles

48 people done - scho thibe, polk, waltz

9/10 to many me, 1/2 shels was pan

Robert Loney + 4 d's to

Allen son, by or - Sh, usual of mother (acty doct)

health

Mother of presiden or to a birth -

trouble of the people, ml chawker I + Utes (slush trail)

to SLC - wound of apier - ev camp - she proved of
her life - only hope in U.S soldier - may had her when
their father [no geography here]

Trail remains of the scalped & muled - 9 corpse. m. c.

Greenback's assistant, up land

Cann City, for Chummin - Calover Brown

Sac 10/3

X

C B Lockwood, my trip to Ca - 1850 write 60 yrs later
up nde pb

had 15 m Cleveland - boat to B - Erie Canal to NY
by Capt French via SW

X

August Preston, D of a f or of Chi to SF
(write 1859, tr. of Gen) year not given - manuscript

X

Dr. A. Soule, the old ox you (a to trail to Denver)
Blanco Falls or mt. pb

Andre Soule 1854

Hampton Book 2

Accid
VMP

IR
SP
SK
BRM

- 6127 Hylen & girl fill out of way, remain here, hurt pretty bad
- 6129 to farm lately just up 15 Es; 30 mi below off Cray 43 mi
- Can of mo-dron
- 7/1 man pump, 5 - 50c 1 new - 3 green \$8.8 body
- 25c clinic whiskey
- 7/2 Mineral Spgs, alkali Spgs
- 7/3 Gressum C
- 7/4 IR, .00 close to barn there - low
- room of Wigg to pass
- 7/10 SP - wheel oze & green
- 886 of St go
- 7/13 take SL road to oval desert
- 7/15 GR 2 boats 03. - buy low cattle \$3. but not TSL
- 7/17 hyant, skunk road from own
- 7/21 tullicks fork, bridge thru Five 2 bridge
- 7/23 E may road out to into 7/27 SS
- take my car out off. 8/5 for SL road

Book 3

hazy day

- 8/23 9/2 to Pyramid Lake, tp
- writer of order of trucky run 25c qt
- 8/17 dep to the a passed took a pack & truck
- Gold Canyon - for his Eagle River - CV
- take the pack trail over to into tps
- 8/24 SF Am Riv 9/14 to Hylen 25c clinic
- 7/15 Sac. City \$2.50 apiece (+ wheels) Am House 50c

44142

Laurel B
1309 ^{with} 1862

recalled

Cray to Plains (map, 1930)
Cray to Plains?

the story, Va Buena, Ore - father Calvin Brewster 75, mother 49, etc
me 17 - 2 yrs - own pit fans -
572 shot to CB, shot 60 - few actual has observations
visit P-wannings - 7/12 of Va Buena, Capt John Alexander, 50 yrs
1/2 day find pull out - boy 19 yr by your no, later hks in, seen
the 40 yr later by lightly, mother throws gun away into
room! For Lorraine

at a few PR - sand-lined canyon tree tips - boys
carry say there sacred memories - chv of gun mules 1852 visit -
show location of oxen 7/4 IR - an acre or more.

I
Crime

M haul-cats 1862 ^{5x} ignoble Snow
E grow equal (house) - his father had habit - murdered the man of the general
Scott & Yang - Scott took to gun & shot - Bick - then he

C. C. Pitt, ~~Driver for Sea to Sea~~ (Phila. 1889)

(fiction)

Harry Wood, ~~Recollections of~~

Life of Joe B. Gooden (Pough 1955)

by means

Hall Roosevelt, ~~obituary of a Sea Family~~ (NY, 1939)

Along Delmas only around

2783

Diry William H. Hampton [1852] - reptil & St of Ca, Dept
Natl Resource, Div B + P, How to see, see 58
any - pp [Wisc. ?] - Delm

Start

3/14 left home - stopped at Dover 3/17 Galapagos

Notes

4/7 went to Quincy 4/10 Got into Quincy, went to Burlington

Heterocercus above & not very sweet // ~~1-3~~ 111

5/13 into St Joe 5/17 can cross, boat aground, Sts crowded

5/18 can - flatboat 5/21 v. g. tur, sand, heavy in kyo

Grove

general survey of Miami + Kichipoo Is // CTS to Brown // new one //

5/26 full BO 5/28 entrance of IR - Mr Huch's drove of

2400 to Ca 5/29 with C & new Gs

fur

but a team of wasson 7 m, 17 - all, the had 7,000 B robes

5/31 21 Gs 6/1 15 m Gs

fur

6/2 met to 10 wgs, load of B robes - furs

PR

6/3 a P - burn little willows

Fu

6/4 full Freq 60 sol to 6/1 4931 wgs, 50,889 cith, 14,621 m...

3,120 w. 4,012 c km 6041, m 3377 steps 2813

6/6 fur B, good chase 6/7 Walrus run off cattle 5 mi

PR

but some of them pretty bad - road frustrated

PR

6/8 fur Budy's dead, plants of turbin - Oak Creek (?) [Cottwood Spgs]

PR

6/10 can SF PR blocks + double 6/11 up: don long hill (to NP)

Lower F

6/14 over bluffs with alt, long hill to asnal + dead, 469 m 1011

6/17 can Lawrence Creek - beaked up Chosen robes

SBS

6/18 CR - getting curstings here, rock - y many shops

of n nr 10 m 1 SBS, there - Gs here 410. 1 to sitting by train see end.

44. chase - of 315 Cur flour

HC

6/19 ED Limon lv one of the ocean, gas 45. - U's small sk + Gs

(at Hare Creek ?), Fr trails: fur IS one Freq [cont!]

tp

6/23 Iv + sev tps - Lawrence prms, bridge - 42 259

FL

↑ u. of m...
m...
elevation

diary

George J. Keellogg
Jo. Doree Co. E.

see

Dec 18 1847
1848

1849

Admitted to the stage to Jo Doree Co. Dec / Cal

3/20 I can go

4/5 Journal of E. I. Calyja

made a start - came to Savannah Mills

5/22 Went to Kv

5/23 J of advs of mo. to Co - Cum gratia with my

42 by - Co. - 100 one hours - via - elec office

Intro - [peculiar script] - telegraph style - abbreviations - m... (m...)

5/28 after to Co - 16 yrs

knows - Dialer Co

uses abbreviations 14

5/31 Cum B... to Plumbrock... P... I...
all absent - Pr... - camp near Rowe's Bluff
hd & Is; about 100 mt... 1 mt... [H Rowe 5/22
for Govt Co line, mt...]

Lump

6/3 about 100 Is... came to Bluffs

Il... debris to read, very odd severely script Il... IIII

6/14 train... 6/14 table Bluffs

(G) E. J. Williams, Detroit Mich

6/16 Line tree - I lodge opp, 7 dead Is

6/17 Ash hollow (G) Harris & Sh...
Adams Cr, Dept of Choles, Independence Co. - 12 cos - 0 yr

6/19 6000 6/20 Cin = 22 = 40 3/4

6/21 with... 6/26 waited 1/2 day for boats

Legislative... 6/27 went to P, came up to the "Fox John"
saw distribution of property - writings - local notes of Southport
friends

6/28 found mo. Co who met by accident
in army the trs down - log tree scarred (?) of m...
one man (?) very badly mangled, another back hurt & some other
brucial

7/5 (G) the Boston, Lewis (?) Co mo

Men Le Bute - trains go back to Ansonia

7/7 Ch... men upper Ferry, plenty of trns - P...
(G) of the Spartan Band of Brown who has part of a
ball hole in his head - B man m... spy

7/8 trd - Co. of troops - a... a co.

Bathel (in P) last time

to Catts 63

Fr

accid

Wm
~~Reed~~ Calif ?
~~to mother~~ O'Brien (?) 7/1/50

You left 247 Mont (?) road - v local of good in these mountains - mts covered w snow 50-60' deep
Calif

to Dr Geo Clement, Uva Hall, Franklin Co. Va
St Louis 3/27/49 - Den Paper - all will be
you? - w calc in leaf p I this evg - come up - boat
of A-B. Clement PS John Ken? has not to chd

to Mrs Pa - f Rough & Ready, Ca 10/18/50 of C F Clement

CFC I Paper Sac 4/24/50
date 11/30 cholera soyy - cal

to under Dr Geo. Clement of Charles B. S. Clem (??)
5/7/49. In Camp near Ia - funeral duty to wife of death of
sac Adam - d. chol 5/5 - Walnut coffin st -
burial 20 m f R in SF road, just beyond BBR, near Westport

Charles Clement to Dr Geo G. 7/30 Camp 300 miles west of Ia
at Fox Campy 4/31/49 - the death of my dear brother (chol)
has deterred me of unity

May disease, but 213 v d chol - v had slight attacks but with
v 2 doctors - it is a disease of the nervous system - pungent vomits
must be stopped - the Colic, Capsicum, opium, camphor - it does not
come up & pull out once - there is a rt trace of the nervous system - 2
Plan is to most prominent of the ribs of nature - hunter -
full speed of the ambulance see B
the letter goes by ^{officers} off - of the F I SF

to 1 Geo Clem of Uva Sac City 8/4/50
Calif Bay

for original in Uva of Virginia Library

Myrtle Reed 30 Cutler, Idaho 1849-50.

Include section on General - Clemens family member

Edward M. Lewis

6/5 - 11/27/65 NY to SLC

ms 1265

2 On ledger size sheets, used flowing script

Natural Hotel, SLC 11/27/65: my route of NY to the West

Left Poughkeepsie 6/5 Albany

6/6 Can to Syracuse

6/7 to Detroit via Grand train RR

6/8 am Detroit, Can to Lemi - Mich City, Chi - got a shaver, Chi to Milwaukee 2/4 back in Chi

7/5 no employer so to Moorpark RR - at Clinton from near you go to Conn to file to Nevada silver mine - to Nevada, Dope up O E White (300 m + Clinton) White's bro had gone to O up 30 yrs - ex Texas - home trial

8/3 recall CBS

8/4 recall on Ferry-boat to O city

at Dist town O E White said, said, his B-i-l C. turtle fair charge - then he goes home + Farmington put - city of 2 weeks [other ahead]

8/5 Caught up w/ train, heavily w/ blind 1 - equal of l-tanned face - 32 yrs

257 York cattle - got ch / mosquitoes I'm out - coal up blots

Nails to quilt - see CT - Nantux + Wandering Is, Bessy - many settlements

8/30 found the Ferry after yrs, had time Cross to PR at Ferry - I had misfortune to V my left eye hurt by bull, horn - Sammy Carel of by ladies of the train - Went to surgeon at the F + had his done my eye - he pronounal sight not apparent, keep plenty cold water on it - charge \$5.

- Antelope for fire + also from chick stone - By six-shooters of six ct

9/17 new judge by, shalston, hen's eggs

E train (Ms) ahead of us arrival of Is; a few of them killed + one Lady captured

10/14 we and F L (Detroit train) - The day of us got them to Is had to study them cattle + Mrs - danger of herding

10/20 Snow storm - wolves eat dead cattle - thankful on SW Sta

One man froze to death - another to - 3 of us quit

11/3 Atabari to SLC - wood appearance - Case up by M train 35 m

11/4 to 3 Camp Sta (Taly) guard of soldiers - Soldiers used to be - Rebel Army, took care of all night - Beards Co. blue tailed deer of supper

11/5 to many Taly Sta - A new + coal gun of soldier

11/6 SP Station - Taly operate St. class of Ohio 4 ft

11/7 A to mile 45 miles to next Sta, a / Taly to operate -

11/8 via Summit of RR - near to LS Sta later into

11/9 to BR Sta 40 m

11/10 Harris Fork Sta (acc. BR) - in George's Run - even

11/12 PRB

11/13 Ben Run Station

7/19 voted to disband up me & 2 up + ... Build of fuel
 7/20 Paul IR + fuel to 10 men in - House Fire x 600 other spent 7/4
 Devils Gate, Note the ch to no flows, it may seem with this notice
 7/21 Recome - out off up 7/26 SP
 7/27 Note to g by us of SL - [Cross here]

9/27 Am Sac City

by 15 - 20,000 wheels - cloth bags, one grown at pc of Sac
 Ro of Am Firm
 9/29 Vote - form of co. studying day time operat. - as hit, new bond office
 B. Burge Pm - Bond, One mil Bondell, Skipler + Locke
 [then of bro. usual about himself - day etc - not of x fed]



ms 9

[E. G. Lamson] in original ms letter, 1850 written to wife of SLC, do only
 handwriting of text - trip

— SLC 7/27 I am in the Great City a 20th of this month .. could as .. Dollar
you other Calomel - Geo. Robinson + I left the Plains a to 25th + Went into
from 33 miles. We had work but 80 mi - I wrote you of the Laundry the there
 was - go deal of sickness in 13 Platt .. has of to be - 300 & near Gt - 20 miles
traced travail + as may to 7 Benil in one Gt - paid may bet FL - to mt that
was nothing but more obstacles - we saw the build that deal - to us, they
would not stop

The Ms are all - The gold mines - 600 team want for has live sp
 Can get what good they want & be back - one season - they up in to go
 the regular route, not to C-O, but they all go to C-O - 500 m & to
 C-O + 805 m of the regular road Old Road

Boys of Rochester, was here (more boys) etc
 Spent up to 10/18/49 - was here to .. was here - 134 in 30
 girls boy - on his .. row close to his .. [She was .. was .. was ..
 .. he men .. want to go back to Engl.



ms 2037

[O J Hall] typical copy. very - Stella Hall Garden of Contemp. Ill

5/2 to 10/18/49 - was here to Calif - since 30, camp of Geo Nathan -
 sick but recovers - 16 ps, 94 acres, 169 days - with Hall built - p. 4:3
 "Argument of C" of Chas W. Perkins, p. 193 of index + note of Calif P's

"Copy of 3" + Note to Hall's diary .. in co. by Phoenix-Kimball - \$500



6/25 Am Camp; So. Fork and party moved after dinner - Got all to legs over at 4 1/2 oc - packed most of the ~~log~~ logs take out of the log of lightning... on hrs + ms. Dist... a long mile

6/26 - Found near Crossy of Co's side by side - one a phypine, to 3 1/2 some SL

6/27 - left NT + found 5 mi over the bluff + into + thru. Att, back to the m again for ch we had been found out to the bluffs long do quite close to river edge, + thereby log no soon of the road - Mr. Crut accid shot by a g-man - a Vign-Co. + (P) dressed up the wound + remained up him day to night in one of Ryan Co's tents.

6/28 Mr. C - no rather previous state 6/29 Mr C so of tall, so/c & TV

6/30 Miss 3 men who had been in the FL they like all other who we met rep. serious tra. chad

7/2 In sight of CR + Court Rock. With other to visit to Court Rock - cut name - top

7/3 met to ~~the~~ Ching. the funeral minister, the appear by the long. Q + Mr. Ryan chad of his so as pass log 1 more

7/4 Came to 633, star + dwicey has all in the small hut owned by a fr-man who is making money fast - buy flour at 1 1/2 dol per ~~at~~ cu. wt. + shells of 9 dolls - Sm. lanky glasses (Boston 8c) of \$1.50, the trader has - a quar f - wife + remain the chad by his estimate. He says he will return to go to the State.

7/5 Mr. C able to get out of log with help. Stop at noon at by one of the keyport + bit of logs (2) Q in camp. Saw of a co. went to some fish. His water enter into the P - caught to for

7/6 and FL II - full of cup of sev blips + includ - a hi well of turf. Prep is now by make of blip. a stone + wood part of the work. We sold about 850 lbs. of pine at 1c per lb. coffee at 8 + 9c - Near... = co. of furniers (etc)

7/7 ~~had~~ had to light the pins. Egg. Ven. poor, upst Es also 3 on Co. + / a conclusion was kept deranged + along up to france

7/9 called to visit a man dangery sick of chol. of Eagle Co. Capt Morse - 20 Blanchard of NY + Iowa - chad to stay overnite - improva - over the 1 co.

7/11 at Dism Creek - but 2 + 300 up

7/12 up Dism Creek - recent arrival + cut hay

7/13 one ping of Platt 50c of log

7/14 voted to throw any all in remay pine but 500 lbs. + rubber boot, Nichols buy a grove + we burned 1 1 panels. - 12 mi below M Ferry on the river side of the road close to - by log ch I used for the transport of Van Renter, Boston Mass. do. 7/16, Cp in M Ferry

7/18 Ed man IR - man shopped - chopped or found

Co's

Accid

turnover

Robbery SB

Accid

FL

shad

shad

ms 2481

re-written
to
 diary

Joseph Miller. Photostat of typed copy; orig at Southern Hist Coll. U of N. Carolina
v. 1 3/18/49 - 6/15/52 v. 2 1851-1854
Treas. Div. of Nat. History Co.

Glenn Suley form: And w/ parents to Am 19. Ov to Ca 21-22 -
Left Memphis on Memp R, up Ark R to Fort Smith (?), Santa Fe, SF PR,
Fort Stanton, Black Hills, Utah Lake. Approached I Road (?). Capt - Co
of HR, trucker R, Feather R to Sac City

(uncertainly. few anecdotes)

6. - Yorktown, England - family had close mill on Filmore Alabama

Justice Miller: taken f rough notes made en route. the account "Composite Ga"
is what he wrote for his notes & memory

3/18 left Memphis a Cashier of Ca - 88 up Ark I Ft Smith, one of Co. overboard,
n. Pine Bluff, visited Little Rock

3/24 outfit at Fort Smith 4/1 in FS w/ wgo

6/8 to Santa Fe 6/20 taas

6/23 left taas acc of Kirk Carson 6/30 Pueblo on to Ark

7/11 Gravel. Ark - clay pits at Pueblo 7/16 and SF PR much good

7/20 in Ft Stanton a place now deserted. cross 3 rafting & fishing & dog-iron

7/22 today we reached to Black Hills, road very rough (?)

[page 4 missing ! ! ! !]

8/17 and SLC [after - we first saw "The Utah Land" in "M. Settle"]

8/18 Came out to I road at Sycamore Rocks - cl on Goose Creek
up HR a Memp R - up trucker - 9/11 when FS
parallel - 1844
star 9/17 struck Feather River, Paul Johnson
9/19 to Sac City



Dr. Orange Locke 1849 - 12/18/25 Warren L. Ambrose to CHS
Includ is copy of the diary of - , founder of Louisville, Ca. - f Boston, 1849

12 pp.

4/16 On this way 26th G. L. 2 lv Boston as physician & surgeon of Boston & Newton Jt. Stock
Assn, w/ a bowl of Ca via Buffalo, Sandusky, Cincinnati, STL & Ft. I.

4/17 Albany - Can of B - treas. note & give conduct #1. of country

4/18 Ship Niagara Falls to board Baltic of Sandusky [Lake Erie]

4/19 see haul service 7/20 an

4/21 an Curry of Carre 4/23 about Griffin Yester of SL

4/27 SL 4/28 a Bay State of I

4/29 see v forest parcel, or SL ?

ships to →

7/21 City of SL. down thru + acid 7/22 hundred of wgs lay by,
to rest cattle in pack thru a cut-off the day by change. - should go
The C.O. Adam morning said we cd get thru - 20 day

7/23 So we cut up a wgs beds + make fast saddle of oxen

7/24 Both group + Amusement to see ceth ring - for dinner etc
the Point, Salt Spring 12 mi S. close to Lake - hollow Creek - west between mt
+ Lake 7/28 Last part water, 60 mile descent

7/31 Down no less than 95 miles, suffering with sore feet - by water 50c gallon

8/2 the people through in + hard men to haul water back in desert
for 25 mi to arrival + suffering people

8/9 No provisions when they were nor when they were off to

8/12 Now on H a St many rain - Provs scarce + more to eat

8/14 50' wide 2' deep - not worth while to keep a of down, for it is all alike,
we kept down it 300 miles - no grass, + seen 150 mil abn to own,
no fresh air and dead animal - to buy mealous 20 m abn sink -
said on pack ~~was~~ saddle of oxen + yoke by Parker

8/30 Provs at \$2 & lb - Came to Salt Lake in Carr R 40 x 2

9/2 me + Samuel + Parker + Berg set out party on our beds of Hayton
& Lomard \$10. of Wm I. Perkins who we got to Hayton

9/12, 13 wgs got - up any loss, saddle, went to work. I was still sick
+ come near dying - out of my senses for about 3 weeks

NOTE Robert studied with Mo + Andrew - Red Carpet in Mo. + said - Or - to E. to
in 1850 + age - 1858. + 9. to Mo 58 to Or one rest of family - lower 200 cattle
Bros job in San Hotel living stable at Michy-Ber, Analox Ct.

X (ms 2971)

Stephan White 1850 Original ms recollection + typed copy.

[Involvement in file re New American Cemetery Co, with Bros + Co.]

574 Beniam Bely, Comdr 2 - a man, prop of the job F. Merriam, 999 Green St JF
in print, Steph White acct of or to 1850 by Judge Robert Bruce Lomard + Col John Wash-
myth, [Shields Alexander] ? 32 ms, 24 typed

Typed Cate deems Factual acct of or of i by follow-up of White's pris for the J.
No hint as to his fate, except what I see - first wife, in Ill. died of the White
reached Ca, both moly refs to hardships + miseries of J, White's attitude
seem to be over of detached optimism - the gran error occur, seem to state
his voice is sophisticated - dispirited, but readable

Lucy Lomard Merriam

[some dates omitted]

- 5/20 Coyne River is hard to boat - to wood
- 5/25 Crowl B13, use ropes - 80' wide 2 1/2' deep
- 5/26 LB 50' wide 3' deep 5/28 had some B
- 5/30 to Acme - plain to PR [entirely quite brief, bare minimum]
- 5/31 divided the tr into 2 cos. - to Fkey, find it
- 6/1 Laughlin by left 1 tr + gl Patterson 6/5 saw one already
(C w Perkins G?)

6/6 to SF, note called Republic Ford (?) - main rd note call Nelmakes
from here becomes hilly - Crowl to rd ch was in transverse - at one time 200
Wagon - to river - we was 2 hrs - to rd - most of powder - legs wet
rd 1 m wide 1 to 3 1/2' deep - sand bottom a chinal rock + soil.

Sue
accid

- 6/7 to NFP - hills became more curious - sickness (disintary) attend
of Dr Bittler, gives Blain Biny up of lost, but I find that soon several here
- 6/10 Biny able to tr. Joe Laughlin's child fell out of log but he was not
mortally wounded, the the wheel run over him

6/14 CHR a bean Eclipse J. Shochy sick H & Perkins sick -
CHR said that approx to Babil together. there was men on it + Crowl it very it.
I went upon it by steps cut for that purpose - for some 800' hi a mile -

sick
Sue

- 6/13 at up part of H. J. Perkins dead, buried - Dr Shochy supplied to be
dig but was out 6/14 5/32 - go on
- 6/15 left rd a few miles - Sp - Canyon - to that had lost 4 + started to climb 2 hrs
H.C. 30' wide 6' deep - of water 2 mi Lawrence River

Fr

6/17 Ford so crowded we can't cross - see people drowned a day or 2 of, some came
near + that evening - Crowl finally - at F, got some necessaries

- 6/20 fuel - timber 6/21 Strike Red Hill
- 6/23 Wm Perkins, Dr. Chatham + I std B chase
- 6/24 6/25 and off ferry, Crowl - 2 hrs, we know to PR ~~X~~
50 yds wide, + ve deep - 3 boats

6/27 LR. 6/29 me + B C Booth + Dr Chatham went up to
the mts, we spent the day looking at the Cans of mts, there mt are mostly rocks

- 7/3 Brook job + Samuel both sick - not fever
- 7/7 SP 1/2 to keep both eyes open to know what you was at that place
- 7/8 LSR 30' wide 2 1/2' deep at Fur Hill [?]
Big S. 40' wide 3' deep

Sue

- 7/12 Over at lower ferry 350' ve deep - C w Perkins ve sick
- 7/14 FB 7/16 I can see death works Perkins, + we lay by. He died at
12 + buried at 4. Heelstone Gasconier Ct, mo
- 7/17 to BR 2/19 to W.C. R m 40' x 3'

ms 1388

Nov diary - number

Ca HS 30

✓ Mary Eliza Wimer Meloy 1849 - 1922

144 yrs. - original ms diary 3/25 - 7/21. 1864

55 p/6

Diary of Mr. J. E. McBride

ms 1322

5/9/50

- copied of original

McBride mello, NC & Calif in 18

Cherokee man, Florida trees

12/51

typical

[very diary + telescoped [broad generalization]]

Grand MR 4 m w Bloomington (?) 11th a old Govt trail. Gray I +

Walden Creek - reached E's road of St. J. 14th, 45m - BRD 21st

Rd of I - Guy me - 26th - To N. W. a Big Plot, Jan 1 -

15 m from FR, nor very moisty - drummy rain + Chilly blast

Cattle Bluffs rise to cold height - ABR on the E House (?)

CR rises like a steep - to air, see of distance - SD of curv -

FL 6/22, healthy skin - upper FR 7/1, 150 m ab -

50 m to Sir - 7/4 Rock I - Strongly magnetically oriented - huge piles of granite

use of a height 5411 to dig to head of a sailer

GR 7/19 - 24 m in distance - BR, m of Green Bay - 7/19

Brain Side Sp

8/5 Skye Rocks - like so many pyramids

Cool water in TVS [by the way view of south] - the water grass putrid
+ almost stinks while whole fore of the at upper to level of frog + green flies.

7/1 Left Side + Grand Gr. D. 40 m wide

How the Eliphant is seen in all this deformity - up CR 75 m to M Sta

in CV, reached here 9/6 - to Georgetown 100 mi 9/10 -

no trail dangerous even for footmen

trip is a painful outline of the of me to Calif + Ossie

4 months 2000 miles

ms 2324

17 p. 405

Robert Mielton Wilson 1850

b. 1828 apr 50 - apr 51

17 p/6

17 p/6

[22] - w/ 2 yrs. travel - medicine + Condit - literature of

? def. morals + his sensibilities - typical of copy of copy of a p. Ruth to

Stalin, San Pablo - O. S. Ct. m. T. C.

Under of R. M. W. of his own Condit + the words of his p. ... so that
it is understood by the simplest person 4 years

4/22 - w/ 30 m. local w/ - Lumbton, Ooze Ct - alone

feeling's 5/10 Grand State line to I. nation

5/11 Strike I road 5/12 org. a co.

5/16 Grand Kan B 5/18 St. Kimmell, 600 words

+ 15" deep (?) - w/ 50 m - no other for not going right to end

7/23 | - up Rapp River - here Cing made train

no sign of tr to origin the year

BCC

7/24 Misses Hudspeth & Myers of Jack Ct mo & just made their opp the - gorge - to mt - thunder when they fell the end of 70 mil of FF - had in to near HR, & over 200 mi

7/25 On road until we strike Marys R ~~is~~ is not local den - any of the guidebooks I've seen. + we must grope our way along - to down of the next 100 mi the Marys R has always had some myths about it - Rock barrier, a home of game

7/26 man of mine in fact 7/27, 30 mi - let STJ 6/27 news of album Co.

7/28 800 by lith in - in and

7/29 Wan sp - Marysville Co

accept
fame

8/4 E.S. Crouse of Brook, exp pass at - he reported them - acts - very good faith. by left the IR 7/14. He was a f - SP on foot of throw away his clay, here he cut a line of \$100 & is of the line - the to he left with stop the 10 days + he thinks they do not see them

8/5 stump to - Pike Ct of Co. near Mountain Form

Dance + obscure as the cleans of Egypt / Digger is not entire

8/10 Ed. Ward - 3 hows of colony - number of them

Bugout

(G) Edel Bugout of Louville, ky 7/18 Bugout Co., ch make the 22 days ahead of us - Harpis Bro Co. found them - 8th

at

8/12 Quite - by to of pack mules find in to - passage of at to Pomer line left IR 7/14

ditto

8/13 Quite - by to pack mules find in to - passage of the to 3 time we see small bits of that line

8/15 im - to Crook line - to road fell to ground back

8/16 over 100 days

8/17 at of up from the road, dec to take the old road - might as well go to the Devil of the river as any other way

8/18 the line, 600 km recently & may long - thous of acres - then you lose 8/5. - to sear of what was lost with, any the devils

8/20 up Sala trous of pan - back - shut blow, had back, collie, the eyes. - by just folios - knows to all the v to the river route - over 27 X

8/21 Rede of fisher faces, to preserve their delicate features. to clear cross the Chamber Cabin - Camp - Yuba to Wash Riv digger 9/11

9/17 John Romano 9/10 See me over, suppl all by Drs

9/18 from mine to near Kate Es. \$100.00 up of Gov Smith

to your long husb HR man

9/18

ms 1359

Henry Rice Mann 6-18-14 (3+) 1849
typical copy of extant portion of diary - original - p. 11 25 pp
6/22 6 9/18

- ? < 200 of ~~papers~~ - Michigan = ~~the papers of Co~~
- 1 album, mixed
- 6/22 moved from place of 9. - Road we are now on is an entire new one
- 6/23 coal on Deer Creek - an old war camp of Snickers
- 6/24 after passing a number of farms, we came to the crossing of Fremont only about 200 yds here, the junction of the Es & taken along their line 314 there is 10 M here city of Fremont & Bas - 8700 pd \$12.44 going with
- 6/27 left with 300 yds - one to - IR starts with all the good outlines of the one - ~~both~~ ~~didn't~~ may - those names, one did have to correct. Not me

OP
fences

IR

6/30 SR Co of border that I take later & John of 50¢. transitory?

7/1. Budger here half of Es \$150 hrs \$125 yoke over

7/2 SP 7/3 two days in

7/4 Judge Lynch held court today at PS re Reed, shot man - SW 10m E SP when he overtook a train, he got on that his partner drove - long to P. He had on \$1000. & subway full of buds led to his arms; got not see Calif

SCO, - C.O. w/ a vengeance

7/6 GR for 100 trip a day or \$6. - 1 BS 5-3/4 - Snow IS

7/9 Coat to 50 yds, miles - 1 Co. but man, we headed

(G) Henry Frank of Adman 7/5 / was killed of oxen running & was wheel over his breast; died instantly

7/10 hills seems impossible - those name - trees

heard today the man tried near SP, of miles, has been acquitted, not positive proof big addressed at the trial - lists wild flowers

7/11 at BR, end of SCO - BRV unusual - Beauty

7/12 When were Sublette - a year or so of course - all sides

7/13 via Smith Fort - M's & I's against jets, M to one of them back - 1/2
break I means to die the hear the my, & some Es & her - certainly, to had over to the govt troops when they can do - Mosquito & train

7/17 Can d. of a perfect jet or 5/5 f?

7/19 White Wall of Ft - Vbn over in 74 days - Barra explain
oasis and Ft - 7/21 Am Falls - Co. Poles up from

FL, FV, - city of whites // My Sullen & what he has kept of his Co
of Dr. Jones, and last note. Co had directed you to mine; some FL, no use
serdy pursues, will only give them Commodore

Crimie

accident

Crimie

SCO

Crimie

Army

ms 632

photocopy

195 pp

Thomas Easton [for FL p. 109

- > In eve we entered the BHS - words of man divide by the display of nature
 a Supreme Being powers
- > 7/2 driving of Platte Canyon - 613 road hrs or 50-60 mi, to
 1/2 of 2 road - Red Buttes - no sign of Eia that grass of 2-3 miles
 along the road has been cut out - evoked of sudden change of nature
- > 7/4 R mules about started - illness of Cal Wilson - H-13
- > 7/6 Cross Big timber - road for 4 smooth or - timberline
- > Deer Creek - next evening, one Co. made \$300 or \$2 per -
 we were kept up to feed M from
- > 7/7 Constantly to stop here - few days of crossing - but news re
 pass projects - our big boys dot to sell their eggs & price them
 Sued a 2 up of \$10, lv 3.5 - my first debt - to saddle horse
- > 7/11 8 souls depart, 18 mules. 2 hrs. - v to be Cal Wilson
 then 80 of U.S. Program & disaster - a robbery to two of their goods - they &
stay - into & not return portion of their goods next spring
- > 7/13 end NFD, owing a mule - ferry a baggage - M - DE
 paid to Pierce - mule - bad order, - a group of their pass & lv
 so disaster prevails in case of their slow progress
- > 7/16 sound of logs of water, finally for dead cattle
- > 7/17 SP New one of eight of log tree - we & passed > 1000 hrs, road lit - gr
 therefore in midst of a thick forest of - old man & woman
- > 7/19 logs of Chanta at gun in 2 days - at GR full gear train, 300
 Gov under Cal Long (Gen) - called on May Geo. Critchley & my, barely, - 1000
 annual, 200 hrs
- 7/20 Gov - Gov log, country of
 Gov to 2 or 3 mile log, just at Blain's Farm
- > 7/22 to FB - 2nd day of Open traps left here the Am 7/24
 7 mules departed of 3200 - of Open traps, 5200 a head count, Bingham
 history of the - BRS
- > 7/26 BR - 2 & GDLV - my project - discuss we were
 150 extra miles a Cal advice of BRS & other
- 8/14 take road "healy" as to cut - refer to the up, cut-off
- 8/19 last entry - glory indeed with project - finally trail

~~ms 475~~

Susan Mark Gramstone typed copy (copy 132?) 5/8-8/27/51
Spelly excellent, dicta poor - dull, factual
mission to Columbia River (the Ocellus) no content / no quotes

5/8 Annual mrg - 14 upr oxen Cows + horn
5/10 down to Wapinitum - 30 men, 13 w + child 11 G's
5/11 Annual Salt Creek - Nolly picnic - no objects - obscurely a state
by enough of a riding whip 5/12 16 G's
5/13 No one knew the road to Fort Canby, Wapinitum had been to Co & St J
for Is w pupins, sent them away at dusk
5/15 to P Bottom 5/16 mail of F Geny stuck w/ in bottom, we
2 90 ms of NTC 5/17 pond del demerit I v J

5/21 in Ogish Flamy 5/22 pond FC 2 other, a no. of g dwellly hid
5/24 Plum C 5/25 had unusual one of the men down
5/28 C 2 m chn fork of P 5/30 Annual SF at upper part, water did not
come over exelation - into aft of rough terrain, steep hill - technical
Incursion of Is opp., visible to Ogish & Jopis - Skins & Sx, Fin 32
Yrs: pupins - wheelbarrow

6/3 Big Creek - sign of lonely tower - CR (pupin) - 2 designs
6/5 SB spurs, a minute place - hollow, et stone in the block BSS - 5 G's
6/8 2 thouses, full LR - pond for 3/4 m Gue saw many ocellus - plenty
of Is com to trade 6/19 for the lone hill, below B. on stand

G 6/14 B. near - to Oen C 6/16 stop opp lower / up 43.
upr / ing 42 1/2 - down part 6/17 G's [gen # of G's]
6/18 Star Sp. well 3, - Annual Run
6/19 Grass hwy C - 1R - ocellus pond
6/20 our Co. dural - lo 7 up. 14 m 7 w. 8 chd 7/22 ice
6/25 SP (not read) 6/29 GR 3/10.

7/6 Olen shiden tp on the Fm, Father got 2 you oxen
41. Bridge Tall - road zig zag - all down
7/10 SS 7/11 tall bridge Port Men
7/13 Flt 7/14 Gm PN sign
Cosma Creek, Coon Creek, Rock C - Co w 3 gunk shot by Is -
Sabin Falls - fmg - way back - Bear men ?? Ponds of GR
8/17 on Umbrella man bed I oging 8/16 left of the Dallas
intely to 1 yr chn to rim 8/17 End of train

6/10 Cal abate swamps - when they get ablated? The remedy is of dirt whiting (?)
6/11 Horn pet antelope - ABR - identify flowers - CHA

6/12 opp CRS 6/13 Capital Hill - SBA - 6 Co rats / Oregon
had got this far, etc - acc to legend - a guide Cook - 5/7 C

6/15 g-loopy dx - FL opp - boys over to mail letters - 2 or 3 mile loopy mess
6/15 a guide to Crown of FL, but we never to NS, so we a fog to trail up to

knowing what is ahead of us 6/20 Margins & 9 side trip down canyon -
trunk we heard the body of a woman, who had been murdered, full hidden there ^{some} clump

6/23 /ing 150 m of F - now v use of a guide - loopy again - tragedy, account to
W. Woman's husband attacked the other man - stabbed him to death. He was tried
convicted & hung, & the woman was sent back to the F

6/24 Boys mile 3 B

6/25 IR man of French, ~~who~~ a 1st of Jeff, who had fine dinner on top
about cord of name of Es, chiseled in pit - saw none of his 1845-50

6/26 Grand Sir 1 m of rock. 4 m Es of Mrs Cole - Mrs Doris Galois, his of
ours. to Oregon 6/28 copy Cas of pupins of oak. We got a
copy of El Dorado news of 50c

7/3 lunch at SP 7/4 SCO 7/7 GR 50 of BS
Down vs steep hill 36. per - Tom return w/ his own horse - some he stole
to the his thicket 7/8 clear - steep cliff. thousands of names

7/10 at Dusk our used by Cramer Buck & mechanics came up + Cp'd w/ us
7/14 Smith's Fine BR tall h, 50c, just cplited - 7/15 wgs de of ropes

7/17 mechanics resuming of 2 Ore, Mr Buck remaining w/ us -
Group bldg, a new road and to mt - I drop hill June the pet antelope
7/29 Lr Thom + Mr Buck to collect tall + pig expense of money via

7/31 SS - at ge Grey Peak appear to had much the more
wgs of 2k other vgs - (but end go on HCO)

8/7 pan ge Ft - Ca roads 8/9 Pyramid Circle, one of goss cum - road
5x 3 mile, rocks cut w/ names, up to 150' hi

8/14 Only springs - man dyg of ball thru lungs, 8/15 hdwts of HRE
8/12 9 new oak of oaks - Mrs states stolen. Found no clue Is Eaty another

8/29 mess Father (p Ca, had 6 wats, or - to 12 miles sta, one of 150v
total of 4 of Calif 9/1 Big meadows

9/1 - up trenches 9/13 Stovall's Camp, name of cabin
9/14 Summit Valley 9/19 to Father's Cabin, Dams Flat
in Ben valley (?) - a woman appeared here

pt

FL

Crown

Crown

IR

GR

meas

↓

pet

x x 7

ms 645

Elyse Ann McAuley Egbert - b. 1835 - 17 or there

Born typical com & com, warm E. - Eve of my un-
4/7 = 9/19 1852 - Iowa to Ca 57 yrs
wrote clearly & well, ~~at~~ pepper her pages w/ a youthful enthusiasm
graciously

Forinal: write of mother, the youngest - 3 McAuleys Major, Tom + Elyse Ann
+ 2 Cheney boys. Father McA had one to Ca 2 yrs before, she took their living hand
w/ them, mother left a Iowa - Big adv. daughter of handprints

dress

Kr

meadow

Is

I

I

I

I

LF

- 4/7 2* logs, oxen, time, sheet in camp above - sister: I wear other dresses
- 4/28 Green Hillow / w + c crushed under way, when she jumped, hills down concrete
- 5/9 via Naknebaton to Kr - thous. water of ferry - 5th move closer to ferry - boat capsized w/ men, cattle, 1 man drown, wind detains ferry, more boats sunk w/ wind
- 5/15. Got one of meekin logs across + one of ours, Mrs M + I left to send to wife while men repairing the boat [Some of men using the boat sunk w/ the cattle] - Some of P's came around, getting impatient + storm, we pld empty pots or them - the men succeeded + they left
- 5/16 Caile, Boys learned their boat thru my + them ferry all day, buy new of the tin - P chief: 12 boxes invite them to camp w/ + eat w/ us - quite done poor to extend the hospitality
- 5/17 I my song, ammunition + ploring 5/18 boys run their ferry another day
- 5/19 To old m/w w/ by Ground
- 5/20 I buried eggs, skeletons - dirty potatoes - found am Elm H
- 5/22 an P, road of keep of sloughs - Is who under guise of trade B robes for blankets of walking appn to steel
- 5/23 Shall C - of bridge built to E, Is dead tall 2 w/ + 3 br
meet 100 P's, lots of meat w/ 67 pieces - lv us alone last rest of a ton
(3 w/ + 5 new) reheat of clothy, knives + tobacco, + stamped - ten of Mrs B. - 4
- 5/25 up 25 paid 5x w/ - miss [?], also - abandoned part;
- 5/26 paid 32 m 1/2 w/ 5/27 went R
- 6/1 to PR, to had just crossed of SSP, of deal of Oxim + Occurty of grass
- 6/2 Storm, logs anchored to obster - gr - me of low - end - last
- 6/3 all huts + 1 w/ blown over
- 6/4 Great Shark Creek; cut-off an Panace Sumps
- 6/5 B. Chases - 3 of these noale imits were slain
- 6/5 Line Tree 6/9 Castle Run
- Express to the station, mail letter

ms 8544

83 pp

HARVETK Booth Greenwood

- my ms diary + Xerox copy

4/25 - 10/19/59

Kone ct, Dec to CB to Dead Stg, Ca

[dim for half-wrty
and diff to descrip]

trip uneventful, diary dull / care of child, baby for months dead
[but notes about me is only personal]

4/25 Let left Elgin, Kone ct, Dec - chul 9, 7: 2 1/2 to Burlington, O (cars)

~~6/4~~ ~~to COs~~ 5/15 left Ottumwa in wagon 5 wps. + card

6/4 to CBs - offered stove, other plan

6/6 Arrived to me a stream ferry boat to O city, Cap of NT

lay a stove of 5 minutes, - w/ 16 km + \$135 herd of cattle - 2 men

6/9 Arrived Elmhth on g. bridge - Front - Is + mosquitoes

6/11 her Gov. to acc. & ordering of gth supplies to Army

6/12 The Lords Day but no attacks in pond

6/13 at LF in breakfast hotel room, from 1/2, full 1/2

6/16 While barely 14 dx Warren, started down, gr. baggon - wood R

6/17 10 m E FR, no well not see it

6/18 B. stove

6/22 Is line road to gas sight of pale face

6/23 Sampled up to c in eye, fatality stops - fives of P

7/1 rocky bluffs very ancient run of crumbly walls - long train of
beard in 7/2 CHRE ~~no~~ cupola

7/3 CR by road tent w/ stove pipe - passing up through the center of the tops

7/4 motion to celebrate Xep of onklops meet - lay over of Mr. Boissopie

7/4 to FL - pass over man 7/20 2 Cos Dragon + 40 wps for DL

7/21 Widow at Wills dx all cut down 7/23 IR, got to name of olds alone

+ 2 Co. Aelroy to 4th jls - 1 - DG 2 tp

Intro

[dull notes of - distance, weather, camping]

7/25

Let us shall see of Sw, a local chain 7/30 JP roads fine

7/31 Mr Freeman Co. left with my, sep to catch, wigo 3 SL - finger tips

pace + whiskey

8/6 FB, hem log - 2 g stove + p.o +

loss ch makes quite a town

8/15 with SL

8/22 a BR - am perfectly sick + trust of the j. - trig 41 42

me and I too - emp of soldiers

9/22 Big meadows - long of desert 10/5 Gmoo

10/8 Com Camp 10/18 Sac City



6/21 GR / my, a family a primitive way - Simple by ~~way~~ Box; crax sloped up 1/2 way. Gun require cotent barley, any 1 down daily, ice cold

6/22 mosquito fossils bed, despite smallpox

6/26 over Pylos Sm tp, 4 log cabin - on I Roly - good stock of skin
 1 bot deomon parts of finger, 1 bot cheap hanty-goni - looked strong w/ m white hat, long hair, scabbard & hanty bag - belt - trade made by him. \$10 & boot, the 88 note [an thanm Ford

Notes

6/27 55 packs recently rats of an leather - tang notes

6/28 Cratin & Love form

6/29 ohms smile cut pack + CSL

6/30 Fit - Grant - chy, Ms herd cutl, 300 per fat - much stn, cheese, butter
 Bussini cheap Th PL Smith - shoe + 10.

Miller of am - gun man so man - farm - meet road

7/4 fruit, hurons, thru & ohar house - to City of Rocks. When Sh said it

7/5 some projects - Good Crain

7/17 cur gear of - Crain man - extra of 14 wgs, put some FL

7/20 all kept papers, last - you sim to outher will

Said heavy a um last - gun upregms - CR - man in room to
 rush up. Crystal of their, & surface those noble old trees (west a creek
 & Bless God / Their deliverer

7/29 at entr to large register - 83 wgs to date

for rocks up to size of sugar hospital - condenser only

May buy wgs & ope mil 2 \$1200 - David Styr

[I washed my mail bus 2 ft w more

8/6 to SF, the to Embarras of Sac - clutch of shuter

men. May have, Daniel Masly, and Joseph Hess. Or Hay H -

X

ms 3037

John B. Hill, typed copy, local 1 Stanton Delaplane

3/25/50 to 9/3/50

21 no ca

Premont, N80 Ct, Ohio - to St Joe to Weirville

A Amal of wgs - Complete ?

Other outfit

re-write - anecdotal
[lengthy entries]

Intro

5/17 glass 150 up - made time of day
5/19 By noon reached main road way up of CBs & Fin child [!!!]. The road to Mrs had made + in shoe try to see - It's alone, wheel off at 150

Emy

Below
Fu
IS

Yds up = 1/2 shots - more show up (Cor + imparty) all told we see 54 men, 39 - Cape Brown Co. + 15 - a party, only a handful copied to the red doirbs - Fin child office of dispatch. said they were 5x, after Pancea - said only want to stampede a stock - white flag party. - present of frows
5/20 roads properly bad - throw our flour + ~~bacon~~ Bacon

FK

A cold bleak windy place. Why a part of located here & can't imagine
5/21 Sued 900 lbs flour + Bacon or 2c lb, bot by outler - old - mud flat, a mis-lucky place of - habitation - fearful roads of 8 miles

B

5/24 12ly had Bs - Byrd County, shadow of a black cloud
5/26 reached SP - crossed same - depr to avoid swimming, meander - Our a shell of flour seal - bottom, & green them in to go into quackin - 5x
5/27 up nr 10 nm, down to Cook to the NP. Descend into hollow & steep
5/31 State House Rock

orig

6/1 CR - 8 miles, not 4 - climb same, Ontario Co. cap of SB 233. The parties in day a land office big, show all kind of animals, price, exam. of some feet
6/2 We were a loop of quarry by train, no hand work as we up 2 up, 12 mile - party of 3 - quarry cooled of master a dual of shot-gun's

I

6/3 with 6 m FL - I as pulcher - tree + scapalls - boys tumble one down, unmutated, scored, lecture of Major Lane - depart

2

6/4 FL - cjt hss of adobe - pic loc. No camp with 1 mile of fort (???)
by me of c/jtable hss, made 1 by blocks of dried mud, there - many soldiers
otahel here, could of offer of ve in name, & evky in conduct of trail fessoin

orig

6/5 Peter's Peak - full view, Cold on Norway - I watch fire
6/9 swaly w/ red-headed sunn for the road - Major Lane, use Colts' persuasion, passed along to line that our crowd were these men - Grove walk Lane, vst of I + Max war, a leader

orig
spread

6/10 M budge - Clay et boys, job post mountain, acc of Frank
6/14 IR, one of Nature's wonders - DB
dust typen of waifs selecte orig of NE, mille Skates in Ill-mo.
The Huray team passed + now behind us was 7,034 - a yr me one
has over found us - 10 to 15,000 started of the we lead

6/16 ice ofy on swamp - not sheep lights a train heads
6/18 SP 6/19 found 5+C Fa wire of FB, but part 2 up they v taken
mostly to right had road - that we did depts 45 in down - descent +
been one up

Lassen R

9/14 to 4R - Antelope Spr - Kettle Hole S - Blue Rock S
 By Kenna 9/23 Is m off 25-30 - run 8¹² - mt
 Is Yell li deans - Goose Lake 9/25
 9/28 much vols f ovgs - 9/30 Chen Lake
 10/1 to help's camp of vols, Lost River - Govt apt. here next
 pass, m to Jennelle on. Sta Green, 60 mi up -
 party split
 10/6 Klamath Lake - Sheep Rock Sp
 10/12 Yreka - 6 mos 5 day 1 h- down
 appar' of land crad - trip not diffi - dangerous
 11/54 - We talked about on an plan to SF - the best

ms 1002



(44 pp)

Jasper Marin Hexon, diary of 5/1 - 8/6/49 ms (now lost)
 b. 1810 typist color & many night diary

Start
 org
 org
 Chats
 org
 rare
 G
 inters

l-educat + abstract, full of details + descrip, High morals, capable, good self-will
 Entertaining, intrep analysis - job - unlettered - LA Herald 4/13/90-4/30/90
 b. Bowley Green, Ky - 6 men - Liberty mo, mules - lost LA plow 1890
 - by 7 o'clock 5/1 1/2 m S MR, road of Liberty Clay Ct, m 8 1 via Blue
 mill Lundy Ferry - 8 men, 19 mules, 3 wgs - to Lib 5/1,
 flatboat propelled 1 oars, rough go
 # 2 Rice farm, 9 m w I, lots [of] 4 yr. or Liberty
 Q Is plenty mule, 1 yr 8 Quarter Century, depic wgs repeat day Mexm lms
 [rambly discourse]
 # 3 anti Big Blue 5/3 - gun blunder - gun copia
discourse on fire arms
 5/4 5/5 #4 5/6 #5 Bull Creek 5/7 #6 - good signi
 many hrs 40 to 60 wgs, 3 to 5 yoke to wgs, 3 men to wgs - mule to hel den
 thru 25 - found 1 7 men 2 wgs of Tennessee
 5/8 #7 lower part of m
 5/9 #8 Potlowsom Is - Peter Bullbony The boy shot
 5/10 #9 over bridge SDC to ditto
 5/11 - lex 6, 13-39, Gabe Brown, camp go together (G) Hm Ranch Ill
 5/12 5/13 Co. of New Yorkers, rough time w mules - race w ox-train,
 cause hot box in wagon hubs! - (G) John Marshall (1846)
 5/14 B13 - Sarah Keys 1846, John Fuller to 4/28/49
 at 7c - hrs of her ct no, Ohio + Penna - (G) B F Adams, Dec 5/10/45
 5/15 to 1 Lounelle + Bone ct no
 5/16 det. distance & time it takes to = mile

LF > 5/27 found a camp F - calculated to go 70 miles up to fall, sea x
& not add more to distance

> this by Louis day we only had 42 days - Zigzag course

> 6/1 River too high, party separated - 6/2 more of same

LF > 6/3 boats crossed by boxes covered to sea - boat... sea days could be
gating to traps over 6/6 by boat across - road to the
near my note road but unclear

> 6/11 in P - Chin bird of wood plow that prepare the atmosphere
Soil looks to be rich as if it / same - good crops of corn, oats & potatoes

> 6/12 - 15 B. as good as Durham beef

> 6/17 by down of sheep - over dead of heart

> 6/20 stone to beat all stones

> 6/23 double G where 2 yrs na built hit by lightning 6/12

Runaway. McLain found accident but not hunt

CHR > 6/24 Camps opp 6/25 CHR I did not see anything remarkable

in to opp - marsh - lumber 6/26 Day of rest, cattle steady - riv to keep

cool, CHR not as much as cur. as I had expected - 60 - 70' hi

Cynic > 6/27 opp SBs, & by pile of rocks 6/28 Fr & Sx pairs

> 6/29 more 1/2 built trader, chips occur raising your own

> 6/30 Camp 5 m w ft - had a distant view, but help look control -

Is/FL Is had be quite tame here this season, & some oth early two had to turn = & give to Is
& double. Some order of to fire assisted - seal to heavy man (?)

> 7/3X Same way, & muddy, some baking, shovels hss & ropes up, clear water, many
balls & shooting at a mark, play card (Devil our aunt)

> 7/4 No firing of guns, got the Conservation powder & Ball - now 17 up, 32 ma cobra

> 7/10 while a questing - 7/11 stamped breaks up stream / oaths

the two roads unite at the bridge - \$6 per - saw log hut, in BSS,

one give, dog goods - Cole's party, sell 6/17

> 7/12 50 m ft to Sw ft when not in PR -

> 7/13 I shall I seal trap - 7/14 B hint near town

> 7/16 IR - not much of a cur DG are 4 grass cur & v sv sea

> 7/22 observation & some birds 7/25 P5

> 7/28 GR sl - BRms 8 /uhg'

8 8/8 SS & 8 cur - one co. long man - not seen

R12 - Bone Creek - TSV - Wainms - Nov 5/7 - I said

v to check up -

9/9 parks - one road dis with to yrean (our route)

- oth due to Swin, Corn level: Hayton - hogging

ms 453

Dand Coals 1849 3/13/49 - 2/20/50 - original ms. 73 pp

- 6/12 passed over hills of coal some level ... off to right of the place to go from the
- 6/13 from N. part of Sullist cutoff 6/15 went to descent to GR. there is about 40 ft. more that came there - 1814 they were known of Canada - pay \$3. five - I still
- 6/16 up by rapids 6/20 here in the forest, Cape Henry Holt, race
- up Cape Manning train, main 6/22 SS 6/24 Ft - Bar Beef & g butter
- & cheese - white woman, part - two months 6/28 Rock City
- 7/14 Sink of st mays - called to pack - but part of them
- 7/20 at top of Caligan mt - the MS had built 2 bridge across CR - down up empty - MS to be (7/23) hinder look at of lower of run
- saw 7/25 Weaver town, big bridge, day of gold
- Weaver town - 3 miles in to hington - train of goods
- 7/26 to Sutton summit 60 miles where gold is found - a little over 3 months / part of ms. - orig 22 ppl - here is a coal bed
- across to Caligan - to start 7/28

Notes in form: poor, uneducated (op. edicts); interests but had 8 real



ms 465

(?) Diary of J.S. Cowden on journey from D. Calig 1853

444 double pp - G. 1826 ?

legible, clear, crisp

bound photostat copy of my ms diary - pp 417 & 10/12

Jr. of Anibal Co. of Kiosangua to Yrean City

optimistic about spirit, enjoys hard work, also business

orig > 4/7 start of it - w/ Anibal family, G.G. & wife, 2 child, G.W. Plessin wife & 2 child, Mrs. Duden & to husband - Calig & men - 5 days, w oxen heavy rain, slow progress, want of open to full

CB > 5/7 are now a bluff city - 5,000 people - new man being & - more, Judge Lynch a half-bred and fellow, but I guess his point is to go gold, a night in decision case - brutal murder - there is 2-3 other jobs, & as many plots / very close & teams, we used one of the plots, over days and in weeks, once again work up 5 days again, re-photostat

> 5/20 part of of here - I brush Anibal tree - "Chapel in" - M / very at

orig Combos w/ Jones Hillis Co., now 22 men 12 women, & a lot of child

Next entry is 1/1/52 - Cali
Thru to trip. at least 10 rods. I was lean of a w/wheel & it came
near. bring me to fr. - w/le 3. sev ill. Sunday (and)
we r lying & still. m Brown & m... END

on p. 15 he says 7/4. 18 days after last date - part dead, they were eaten
FL - rms - 7/4/51 he - - Pleasville? - dates 6/6/50 + 1/1/52

X

ms 302

Jones (?) Cali SF - 2/8/50 Den parents, bro & sister
typed copy of original where?

- will go on a short part of n of the States. The better of the sheet
- Common of P. tobago ... of the log Sh cholera broke out on board. We went up a hurricane
deck & remained there until we got to I. It was a horrible sight to be held to d & d; the
groaning etc side & the narrow of their feet. As part of the deck, the bodies in boxes up &
buried in boxes of the ms. they buried the 2-3 x a day; Sev X after lunch they
drown off by owner of the land & is obliged to bury the dead - to an island. 50 dead by we
and Sjs & prob 100 sick in we got off the boat - the chol pul as 700 miles until we hit
the Pratt (air) run - we / pm 5 to 15 Gs a day.

dead
Cholera

weather
B

after 150 ms we reached - for 300 miles & sand & water - B here... I
almost worked I had not shot him, he was such a noble animal; had only faint
to act tongue & some hair. To spare my horse with - walked close in, one white one
looked like a panther. To pull my train, ch had animal

I

To ride up, better formation, Chief has pupes of Fort Laramie. We go
then tobacco, bread, sheep etc. Four semi-wild, smoke pop to - they show us
where to find - of Shoshone, pig horses, throw - bone knife & arrow
Bit GR - Sh. no fit place of end by to love

H-

The H. a first run in to gold - a narrow line up alluvium,
loss of absorption & vapor to 5000 ft & 10000 ft. many lakes of low shores
fragile w/ bullwipes & whitest of ochre mountains.

On Sh (snow near melt) to Pleas valley 8-mi

Colony of E. A. Wallace

B. ind of more copper - and dump SF with 49
prints of sheets, freedom of Gambia hss. - etc

ms 269

J. (Joe) N. Burroughs 1856

Recaller

typical com

6.1839 (15) Sept 54 Sept 56

1 yr = mo to get out. Had. kept mo 5/56 - Nep. City 9/56 61 kb

Intro

Brother Lewis had already made 3 trips, Begg 1849; on the low ground to the
of water, dead channels - home SC - then to (w/ Lewis) + J m (now)
Stevenson - punch in a 15 cattle, all received Ca [a lot of potatoes scattered
throughout] - then Alabama - small cabin
Went - Arkansas (?) (on the line!)

Intro

outfit

Speed

Speed

Start of Lafayette Ct, mo where outfit / plan was to be shipped of Sh
own goods had not come; so had to leave - mo 1855 - go to Perry
Texas Prairie, 12 m of S. Valley to, a town - more, 20 m SW highway

outfit

pace

?

5/7 - slow go to gun and then to flock up - start out to
bank of the river, we moved to the end of a 1/2 m of the middle of it -
John Dickson + Porter to - on group 7 men - 1 woman (my ^{new} arrival!)

20 men + 5 women, well and - 500 head cattle
Had to walk 3/4 of way - Stop 2 [1/2] day on way
Lost no more than 1/2 day with

Fu

Is

On SS PR at a starting pt (I?) - atmospheric deception,
nearly midday - miles of visibility distance - CHR not 1 mile but 12

SF unit

CR

Is

Is

UPB

On passing FR, a road dirt to south of the road, rounded - I etc -
No to w/ then the yr, like 1/2 of the

SF -- showed down banks - getting on of own stay gr - 12 m to

NI - tall chug w/ belly gone - long with the antelope
Cly H kept cattle a good cow shot any of willows

- on PR - 15-20 mtd Is; suddenly try escape

- log put in ~~the water~~ up the plate only (where did
logs come from? 02.50 + 25

Anti

When?

Appearance of robins - trail + candle to be shot -
2 leaders kept close to me - next up each of 4 remaining gun to right to

chase & when he shot. Lined up, eyes banded, kneel down

Shot - pre-pop Co (robins + ~~some~~ Carthagen) of Calif

Morgan + Lyons - capture of Morgan - try escape - California

Cambley try to entrance - could give
Cannon Cannon

to Haystack - ~~white~~ black of dust
to Nep. City 9/13 4 m 6 days

the first we saw a sign a new route that has not been tried till this season. We took
the SL road of 35 m & there took to the right some into Oregon this is off to east
to oval to 49 m down [Kinney Co] .. the boys & family give us off to
Car + a sign to Car I am bound to get to Oregon yet if it is against the probability
if not, I write - SL

Intro

my boots about gone out - I v to find aly bare-footed - money
turns up money! - Jan Oregon Co, work pay - then

7/12 to middle of pr. GR. - 2 rope f. boot

7/14 rope SCO 7/16 to Bev (?)

I

Is was to sweep envelope meat of shorts, found - some because of Elk skin

7/15 into Fox, then Fox, Beaver, +1 - musktoe - swam,

no out they are sleeping (worse than the Is) 7/20 to GR

7/21 from Side to Bev S 7/22 go to Oregon road

7/24 v of SR 7/25 Is a quantity of feathers of all

I

around that even level, push them while we eat, out of each other's hands
v Eat them

7/26 camp in blue fit - has

Doctr + Protrude (1) i Supp

7/27 walk wandan below to sup

dent fog - Panmuck R, Rock G, the An Fall, Ross C, Bull Run C

Rack-Oggie, howl like a part of water ~~from top to sea~~

Box shot Salms 15 lbs 8/2 Selk Fall - peng. of 2

by birds in the tandem, wings disassemble - 80 rods - 10-12 up rd

8/10 cross a 9 up - Madras Bog = peng Bog

more Lemnia (diarrhea) 8/20 lower long SR 1/2 m above

For Bowie - Wasser Bird 1 peng, got a up-own up to top the apt (?)

FB NS S 2 m below (fl of Bam + SR - HBC denied - illness of

may. too much salmon (?) - We - center of E. in

8/23 Deer R - 3 of a Cole to park TOC 325 m

Made a few daler 3 only Museum of skins - w/ Mr. Boothill

Madras Bog head by still 8/24 Ground 8/28 Blue Mt

9/3 to Calum R 9/4 to O - work - Boat 1

breakpt, hand 20 up 9/7 to Lake Falls -

worn eye - otlet to Patch 9/9 to OC dead brown

you go out of town of PR - our Co. lay over one day p. wk, and of 12 hrs. -
- never out of sight of B, 100 to 1000 - few spruce shoots as there in the snow.
- needs 5 to 10 ea day, by ambushing - B is clumsy & runs like a cow -
a horse I run a to one ve quickly - hard to turn

B

cos that needed them traced stock - or FLE - 60 Fuc haled they were
in our rear. - a row in sheep, jumps the cliffs, along led - The heards (?)
White wolves - Poms

Rm sharp

No new

As

Deaths

all runs at full w/ ease I to S Fat
DG. Stat sp - or FH. all 500 Is. Flethead & trade - 0 Bot. hump /
5 pack of tobacco + a lb of Becks; used to Govt of \$50

after FH not given, no doctor, may die - By Time and Goose Creek
where Org - Road trail off, about 50 yds ahead to go to Oregon, out some doctors -

Some party of ~~the~~ Hastings Co. this road together at foot of SN mt. the
D-parting was to get up notice when they got there, we got there 2 weeks before they did...
they go to generally & their Capt. Mel. + members + they go to 12 hrs to br. Wm McArthur
+ a Mr Eddy left to Co. w/ him, overtake a party to m of Sut F. etc.

Our Co. had a road most of the way, crossing it - but road + had no for rail.
those who come to can bore to the S. - came into what is called 1000 Sp. V.
we had only 1 man all the way into the PIs

dry

When we found a dead we had to bury them - Carroll + let the stock traps
the road 00 to Is / full to place of the / day up to body & get to close it was killed
in - 3 of a man a val of Is, who used personal arrows.

Deaths

Ann dears to transmission - over 25 x - I NT Ann Rev -
Capt of D-part + Mr Eddy overtook us 30 miles from Johnson - land on it of J.
while there heard an fleet had landed + brought to Ann flag.

50 m to Sut F, no road, but level - over 10, 6 miles of Is
the first An killed Co. - Calif & next day, mail job better Whitman

Same to Nape Ct, one to Sute Clm Ct. Just 8/ us all septal.
Lt Blackburn came up of marking a security off - of Col. Frank to subin
men to of his regiment 88 to lower law. - four miles to SCM - Col F
Annul ~~Co~~ Capt. Armont to raise a Co. & send to W. +

More of the men that B - exhibit went down of his to M. & my
Anyl T be at San Jose 11/1, & meet Capt. Owens. who was getting home of Col F -
there ex 50 m to goal & drive 500 hrs. Stunner of Spent or
Salvia planis, & stw - Batter of Sute Clm. 1847

Note by G L Brown
Bro. Brigham captured me on trap and traps
after first round, pulled Capt. Hill, SC etc.

1853

ms 93

Barley, Wm Carey / 1850-1866

type ++ - original - pp

~~1853~~?

former Del Norte Ct

1. of ~~Barley~~ Rowe to Crescent City via SLC

pp 3-5

Barley personal diary, but earlier, recollection

1857

1850 / Chi to Mohave River - Potowatome Ct, lower: the summer of 1851 was warm & wet. A by Eben T. Co. we plowed & planted. the girls & I hoed & went barefoot. Had to fern & agave & big thunders to wind stripped the fodder off the cornstalks & John has gone to Oregon. Another June winter - the spring of 1852 brings more Ca Pilgrims - corn has gone up \$2 a bushel & we sell out. get one oxen & all heads start for Oregon Camp near Mo Rev. (?) mother goes home, Woodruff & I plant corn & garden & helped in M. meadows. Fall \$2 makes to sell. seed entire estate of a father of \$200. & in spring of 53 the horse land on the direct line of water to

only a short part of future Pacific R.R. is abandoned & up & we poor team & outfit we cross to Mo Rev taking up the water machine. weeks of storm - days of fog - night of elements, acres of ground, stretches of desolation, weariness, all the usual aspects of desert for inland till Aug 3 we reach SLC. rest 2 weeks. 8/17 open - the moon & an ice 8/26 camp - 48 of Ogden. down sickness dead all H. - days of dust & water hunger, days when we felt like kicking the dogs that ate the bacon skins & crusts and cups - miles that my oxen walked over my own feet when there were plenty of teams by little load hardly big long hobbles. poor Rabbit Hole & Black Rock, down to mt. Every day hungry. the last look gone. to Lost River where we find the 'train' has a plenty as the Oregon Vols make a 'double' & so a few more had slow days - on 10/12 am & Yreka, Siskiyou Ct, wheel up, poor & hungry all the time. we found the oxen out - the Little Shasta & I & Co we are just out of them, etc.

to Crescent City. while here a lot of of IS cpl on the beach near a hill, executed by a party of cowardly murderers - 11 of them killed, we were mostly. his story came of one of girl shot & legs by bullet & one of a hand, John Adams, has just been shot - the brush to believe the hands of one terribly wounded old soldier of Bucknott

X

ms 313

typed transcript

Campbell, Don D., 1846

8. 1824 - soldier under Fremont, 1847

48 mm top west of father, uncle & bro - 250 wgs to I - news 50-60 & a story, not = diary - Publ. Porterville Weekly Bee, 1899

"A Pioneer of 1846. Sketch of Handiwork of those who came to Ariz. '46" there are 250 eggs - number of I 4/1/46 - divided into 105. of 25-30 wgs, ea of own eggs. Eben Col. Wm Russell of Ky co commander. - 4/1/46 - soon detd ea co. A indep, yet nearly - rushes put their cattle trailer - packed

6/15 - Boulder Bend SB - fine & cedar - 650 on the lower side of the road kept of Rubidoux (camp) - The possible path - clear day. fine view over the RMs

6/16 - on the The Ellen Union Bend - droned (?) - on the way

6/19. LF - kept up the staked road up to P - steep & deep hole to descend, into BH

6/23. Deer Creek 1/4 m above rd on E side - a base of Stone Coal by a co. - 6/24 to another place - 5 m

to Upper Platte pass [3 passes]

6/26 - 4 yoke oxen used for lighting

6/28 - IR - line about other 1/2 mile of survey

6/29 - picked up on left of the co, up to face of house - put in the wagon to recover

[specimens / fractured / no smokes / no droned]

7/3 SP - SCO

7/5-6 to see into JT me

Recall to 1/2 way down when - - very deep some at summit / then to GR to a staked over of some - bluff down to dead

7/7 Upper pass - M

7/13 Bear Sp

7/15 Stet J

7/16 over the timber trail & Walter Cross to 1 Pass at

7/18 of the crossy 3 a creek's came to Port Mait, all bad fossils. T.

FTT - a small F a Linn - down R

7/19 An Fall

7/21 Rept R. - up to Calif - 'Oryz' rd sep.

Corn Creek

7/27 Hot Sp V

8/17 nety Ms optate & no gran & soil

8/18 left road to Corn Run - deepai

Pen Creek: Cozi Conin

was piece of soil even white in -

missing down - by way - by marks - so without no sunshine

8/29 Red Lobs at foot St

8/30 wood - knee - hemolysis

9/1 Lake Spring / Camp area - Pleasant V - Ringwood

6 Webster

- 7/15 & April days of chronic diarrhoea
now part from who found out of us a BR
- 7/23 man shot by Is of amon
- 7/31 pituit mass of cornputer - too much and not enough
- 8/11 app of final retreat of a once profan any
now packing
Lick Spgs - Grizzly Bears - tree 8-10' tall 200' hi
man - via Hayter & Wrenston - at Wrenston
- 10/20 See

Quadrant - Road of Calif 1850

- design of public - to entertain
- > ar RP - Fr operation - II story of I getting revenge / children death of her
James of study on E - Is out to eat a thousand pieces -
there on in = G & E + Yale both being born 1 member
- > Gary SF - Bradley Chambers
- 1 FL - to H / admin
- John to Stg - H61

JCSI	461	SP & J. Cut-off	BR 230
Stg	6 FK	318	BR Bal T over H 302
FK	6 FL	342	South-E Sun 367
To SP	280	Sum E CR	50
CR	Hayter	207	

ms 31 Bings m. Watts 1849

[Xerox copy of original ms]

- Final Log - present 5/17/50 - J Duke Clara Watts SF 5/7/20 + Susan Watts child
- Prologue of Van Watts - Mark twin 14 yrs, nearly who news of jail record
- at no. schools in when Bm (orn) Watt, 21, was teacher - Central to Boone
- 4/5 left Beverly Green / Ca - Stg - ^{Grant} Fin legs. 42 man
- 5/10 to Stg (opp. St goe)
- 5/11 death E F Lewis - burial
- 5/20 B3 (3 miles / final) ? - on 189 he made a call to Louisiana
- 5/21 Burdette + Mmitt catch up - a Buggy
- 5/22 Mrs M. killed - 1/2 antelope - E
- 5/28 P. ~~left~~ Bottom 5/29 FK - 15 m to one mile I regret
- 6/5 over y SP 3/4 - 15" deep
- 6/6 Sp vs 150 Wyans NS SP
- 6/9 find one pt of bluff to alt - more was - up 10 m to Castle Bluff
- circulation of its owner
- 6/10 story of wild sublimity - disney / old disney - tent topy-ting
- 6/13 CTR vat show of Nelson - a sep to elto
- 6/14 CR - few 150' part

5/8 wrote a serious lyric a Stgo v her swindlers - took to edith

5/14 1515 - home of the mouse

5/25 Bayle, dulcimer, viol + horns more v. re-echoes a stream of raw med. by
also chop in an of ~~water~~ rope + drum whip

5/20 are solid many more of ~~concrete~~

5/22 P. Bottani

5/23 FR at head of 20 mile island

5/27 Laromni form (!!!) [the man SP] - took lunch + then - co. of us scaled Pease Summit

5/30 Grand Sp - safety - descended hill to city - safety
2 lions passed today

5/31 sense of abrupt bluffs - convex, concave, elliptical, square, hexagon, octagon, pentagon etc

6/1 new church - c-h [un] CASTLE ROCK on

6/2 ten miles off - city hall NY - a hi tower near - lower st

6/3 with 3 dogs, v pul 5 I vely-

+ CR less demyion bottles, nozzle up 250' hi

6/4 SB. are truly military, a go pile of integrated towns

6/5 Paul another T + F + vily, no hole

6/6 LF - Bean vils - mail letters - trains crossy / CB nt, Bad Army

6/8 fall - at Ch to, Capt Butler - up + d hill opposite

6/12 To ferry - ~~at~~ up 24m - over 2 hrs - 5 boat - 44 pm
IR -

6/15 Granite ~~rock~~ rock piled heap up heap town and, kissing y sweet lips

The azure sky - E main eye the eye c see. then man - less

6/17 ~~be~~ boys go mt. climbing - chilly but sudden quiet

6/19 Light up all to rope now

6/20 the culmity pt. th open st mt - road. Best of whole route - no
sign to make in a crossy to km chain

6/21 SO - mt pass

6/23 45 to BR mt of 30 as in foul grade of lower 44. pm

6/29 Lodge New Plan Is - traded up to the TR + allies

7/1 left BR. went into bowels of mts as of GIB

7/4 untend - 3 Bupier out of wood rope at midmount, after ch.

after speak to the + selecty Crodes - my outline Wanda Co

7/6 gas of fine state + m route
tanner + other of SLR behind a week

7/17 may pack + up one of press

- 8/14 Co. voted to go by way of M. O'Brien job
interview with Smith
- 8/15 Copy things Co.
- 8/16 Ben Spyer etc - here a new road that has been open for 3 weeks
- 8/17 We learn of the old interview... that we had a meeting over the road,
where no white man ever took that they were
members of churches at home (mostly Baptist) and the most selfish & contemptible
// is the Cook, proud of it
- 8/27 Castle City Hotel & other grotesque figures
- 8/30 Transient face look as tho they had been drilled in a road puddle & dried
- 8/31 Negro Route completely white-washed by white dust
- 9/4 3 of Welton Rye found for 3 Fr
- 9/5 NO deer on Fr - dry - hills are dry, full of cracks
- 9/7 Long connection of the high species
white road topped by light. Bird hits are to park
Fr of V.S. Wagon to put rocks up for of one CT
- 9/12 We strike a west course via mud road to behind Feather R
instead of go via over a Hill, & other front
- 9/15 Robin will / Lake Pilgrim Page & Paul Cong - / Caucasian
- 10/17 finally reach road FR 6 miles from Boston
- 10/19 found new ca. and a. Beckholdin, K. Webster
Ded 3 miles to San of Jones - start log for
X R. 18 M - left wife + 5 am child

Vault ms 70

Cogswell, Hamden Aubrey 1850

3 days to page (not book)
 any ms diary (pencil, pen) + + + (not page)
 53 pp 28 pp

6. 1810
 to the diary of 414 - 8/24, Joliet & see T. Placerville, mining
 21 sep. "mineral" & "wages"

Quater

Intro of Louis Dorsey Cogswell - make a mile, 2577 - noted summer & sunset
 N. G. Cogswell (sic) at J. C. S. L. at 5 ac - note book - These poss. & somewhere
 X-panded version of the original - evidently transcribed & revised, w/ elaboration
 to 6/26 (pencil & P. J. Healy 10/25/17)

4/4 5. H.A.C. + O.D.C., C. Black, Geo Agal + C Hill left Joliet
 Hill Co, Ill

5/1 into St J, blown - fixed - muddy & gloom - with horse swing w/ handle
 Hercules group (w/ Ewart & Grail camp + the black horse & own

5/5 - Ground in area / very

poetic phrases

- 6/14 Blat B hill yst - Thom Sy
- 6/19 ~~Cont~~ in Plat 65. - Grand Sage
- 6/22 in called ~~by~~ 1/2 by set Stg & Callig - 2 tp
- 6/23 Dend of a pass - left to Camp - some of another Company
- 6/26 ~~plenty~~ plenty of tps
- 6/29 devel backbone - Lot of M thives & gables, they pick to keep a tp - SP
- 6/30 ~~Cham~~ Cham of mt cord w/ snow
- 7/4 GR sev tps - M km Syd - E final of photo by - ha to see train
GR into & BR - magister only & thives we see w/o goggles
- 7/14 SS sev tps - west near the Sanctuary
- 7/22 to RR - jump hill
- 7/25 Rocky town - Sheep Creek 7/31 + SV
- 8/27 Big meadows
- 8/31 Reg town - a few shades of canyon - hotels, grocery, saloons, eating his 'mountain'
- 9/11 CV settled, race over keeps th - liquor & veg
- 9/16 thru Cannon - 1st & seal over
- 9/20 21 - hot Pleasant

[No good of "Unknown Secret"]



ms 52 (circled) 74 (circled)

T Backslider, Dr. Amos - (1-8/49) - 12/20/50

typed copy - big w/ granular, SLC - donated Callig 12/12

> Starts 6/18 at Lower crossg of Sp

> 7/3 Paced up a little after 6:00, 5 Cur found bluffs just back of where we stopped of down, nothing like the fog drag - 300'

> 7/6 drag of Dore Rock

X > 7/31 SP 8/1 OT

Monthly meeting of choice of officers

8/2 Now off the main road, N of SCO - I see 100 miles

8/5 So here of a map scale. To almight has that crest all that we see at here seldom see to star - Scapio here yes

8/8 alternative of slight firm

8/12 Our guide backslider, he is a geology of man - (in spite of his) at least we v feel to read to Ben River

